Public Document Pack

CHESTERFIELD
A BOROUGH COUNCIL

Please ask for Amanda Clayton
Direct Line: 01246 34 5273
Email committee.services@chesterfield.gov.uk

The Chair and Members of Enterprise
and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

6 July 2022

Dear Councillor,

Please attend a meeting of the ENTERPRISE AND WELLBEING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2022 at 5.00 pm
in Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Rose Hill, Chesterfield, the agenda for which is
set out below.

AGENDA

Part 1(Public Information)

1. Declarations of Members' And Officers' Interests Relating To Items On
The Agenda

2.  Apologies for Absence

3.  Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing - Recycling Communications
Plan

To support the design of a Recycling Education Plan, committee members
will be provided with a briefing on the plans to run an communications
campaign centred around recycling to coincide with National Recycling
Week in September, followed by a workshop discussion about areas of
focus and key messages.

Questions:

Chesterfield Borough Council, Town Hall, Rose Hill, Chesterfield S40 1LP
Telephone: 01246 345 345, Text: 07960 910 264, Email: info@chesterfield.gov.uk

www.chesterfield.gov.uk




- What are the most common queries raised by ward residents relating to
recycling?

- What is the perception of residents in the borough of the impact that
recycling has on climate change?

- What key messages and themes would contribute to a successful
campaign and which formats would be best suited to this approach?

Cabinet Member for Town Centres and Visitor Economy - Revitalising
the Heart of Chesterfield - Consultation (Pages 3 - 134)

To support the Revitalising the Heart of Chesterfield Plans, committee
members will conduct a consultation exercise on the proposals.

Scrutiny Monitoring (Pages 135 - 140)
Forward Plan

The latest version of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1 August, 2022 to
30 November, 2022 is available via the link below;

Forward Plan

Work Programme for the Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
(Pages 141 - 144)

Minutes (Pages 145 - 148)

Yours sincerely,

1%

Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer


https://chesterfieldintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/l140/Printed%20plan%20July%202022.pdf?T=4

The story
so far...

Have your say on town centre regeneration plans

We're investing in our town centre to make sure
it thrives for generations to come.

The £10.28m Revitalising the Heart of Chesterfield scheme will
transform the look, feel and flow of the town centre - creating a
contemporary market built on our proud history and heritage.

We want to hear your views on our plans, as part of a public
consultation running from 24 May to 8 July 2022.

What's happening? The Proposals

¢ abed

This exhibition sets out some of the Proposals include:
key proposals - and you can also » Significant improvements to
see the full draft designs online at: Chesterfield’s historic market grounds.
www.chesterfield.gov.uk/revitalise . Re-imagined town centre spaces
and paper copies are available that can be used for attractions
in the exhibition room. like markets, festivals, events
, and cultural celebrations. H F | r n e | . g X
We're focusing on the key areas K. . : H o W - o o | o et
of Rykneld Square, Spire Walk,  Upgrades to Rykneld Square to R 3 - o ’ i By 4 E [y B0 | | . | | 1 Key
Corporation Street, Burlington Street, help frame the iconic Crooked L - I el § o a I | gs:i':i::i:”iﬁzes
Market Square and New Square. Spire as a key attraction. 5 " B e : :" Y W | /Locations
The work will be carried out in » More greenery, new paving, seating, | :
phases - starting later this year lighting, signposting and street
and due for completion in 2025. furniture to create better-looking

How can | get involved?

Please read through the
information in this exhibition.
At the end, you will find
details of how to put forward
your views on our latest plans.

and better-connected spaces.

* Improved lighting and
digital connectivity.

Together with the major refurbishment
of Stephenson Memorial Hall on
Corporation Street, the project is

being brought forward thanks to
almost £20m which Chesterfield
Borough Council secured from the
Government's levelling up fund.

Historic view of St Mary and All Saints Church 1928 Market aerial view

Revitalising the

Heart of Chesterfield

CHESTERFIELD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

/




OU r ViSiOn fOr — Corporation Street
Chesterfield

Packers Row

Rykneld Square

High Street

. =

Burlington Street

Parish Church of
St. Mary and All Saints

- Market Square

I o T wy . i e - g ".I.\ - i :T
e j d . . - o 1 - ||||'| [} ] MR - 4 } - : 2 ==
. d A . . " e Al T 1 .
] J " - ¥ e Wi R -
: : 3 ’ - ‘ i3 L et "
| “rine ! L 1 e T
. r, = e ; Wl - .3 s
Low Pavement ] . s 47
. i i = o
" . 5 :

i Our vision Is to create an attractive, Bring new life to Create more Improve % Enhance Create a greener
contemporary market town that the Town Centre social space % signposting safety % Town Centre
celgbrates our proud hIStOI’.y and We will create an attractive We will create a new variety of We will enhance existing signage to We will use innovative design We will plant more street trees and
herltage. We want Chesterfield to environment which encourages seating, considerately placed, to suit create a town centre that is easy to which contributes to a safe greenery to create an attractive
be 3 go-to destination where people an outdoor ‘café culture’ to bring all visitors and encourage people to navigate, with a focus on key attractions. and secure town centre. environment, help mitigate the
shop and spend their leisure time new life to the town centre .. dwell and relax in the town centre. effects of climate change and

increase town centre biodiversity.

Celebrating identity and X Introduce playful @ Create more N Frame landmark 535
embrace heritage design elements event space - views

We will celebrate the identity of We will incorporate playful We will re-imagine key public spaces Maintain clear views to historic
Chesterfield by enhancing our elements within the design to to create a flexible town centre that wayfinding landmarks such as,

historic market, and the setting of encourage children and adults alike can host a wide range of attractions Church of St Mary and All Saints,

the Parish Church of St Mary and All to play and interact - adding new like markets, festivals, events, and Chesterfield Market Hall.

Saints (Crooked Spire) and the town's enjoyment to the town centre. cultural celebrations and community
cultural / heritage attractions. gatherings throughout the year.

Revitalising the

Heart of Chesterfield

| “
/ O
4 () \
i L )
]
K XTI DE T (1]
A A A A
{ WUSEUM 1 y r 7 )
/.

CHESTERFIELD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

/

i




G abed

New Square and

Market Place

e Flexible space

For event use including
temporary market stalls
on busy market days

New seating area ——

With proposed playful
features and planting

Market Hall

— EXxisting vehicular access

New Pocket Park —

On Low Pavement will provide spillout
opportunities from the Market Hall,

Resurfaced High Street ——

With street trees and
seating opportunities

Retained in combination
with security measures

“d
Reconfigured permanent market 'y

1 3 a0k

With central, flexible events space
and re-use of existing cobbles
combined with new stone surface

L ”
LR e | | 1 :
* Tt TR et | Bl S
i ..f';'r*:' ?.'.‘”. *
) . Mp i /
o |

@ Proposed street trees

seating and increased tree planting

A multi-million pound investment will revitalise our
historic market grounds. Our vision is to create a modern,
vibrant town centre experience with additional space

\ Segll alongside our traditional markets to host outdoor

events, speciality markets and entertainment.

e We will take a sympathetic approach which
builds on our proud history and heritage while
improving the quality of the public realm.

Proposals for this area - which is made up of three
key spaces - Market Square, New Square and a
new pocket park on Low Pavement - have been
drawn up in consultation with local traders.

Chesterfield’s Market Square and New Square currently
host a similar array of market stalls, many of which are
underused. The redistribution of permanent and temporary
stalls - focusing the permanent market within Market
Square, and temporary stalls in New Square - will make

the space more flexible and allow other events to happen
and provide more reasons for people to visit Chesterfield.

CHESTERFIELD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

/

The pocket park will provide valuable seating, surrounded

by new planting, and shelter to the market stalls.

The existing surface materials (stone flags and cobbles)
are high quality, durable and reflect the history of the
town. The ambition is to repurpose and reuse these
materials where possible, addressing accessibility issues,
and delivering a sustainable solution to paving. An
injection of new stone will enliven the existing materials
and redefine the key spaces, supplemented with
carefully positioned tree planting and street furniture.

The town centre is predominately hard paved with a
limited number of mature trees. We will plant more trees
to create an attractive environment, encourage people
to dwell in the town centre, and improve biodiversity.

R EET# . . = L
«™ . HLGHJ'S:TaR o ol s

"

:‘a‘ - -l -_':.—'i_‘ 3
- ¥, i e
- P Rl ¥
. g8
Wi :

7 ~WESTBARS "

e

Key

Permanent stalls retained for day to
day traditional market use

Flexible open hard space allows for temporary
market stalls, drive on facilities and events

iy

‘_____ e Fi e e
WEST BARS  —nt

i XA

Key

Potential for ornamental
planting below trees

Existing trees

© “WEST BARS -

Key
&» Potential active edge Seating locations

Potential 'playful' furniture element

1 | L—
I vl f 'MM

o CHIGHSTRERL “omih;

=t ! s IEN
. -
TR i = W
i =
; M |
t . ¥ -~ B
..... - Lir o i. L s
- - T B

“WEST BARS ' ——m

e P -
i T A B
i ”‘.-.' ¥ oL

ki

s 'h-‘i N S e - i A
‘H-LOW CAVEMENT - e J
’\L.l-\’ a r»ﬁ. e &

Key

Market Square - flexible market
space for seasonal and specialist
stalls and temporary seating

New Square - music and children’s
events as well as temporary
installations and markets

Revitalising the

Heart of Chesterfield




Bringing our historic

market grounds

a | |Ve Market Square Potential Events New Square Potential Events

Our plans will create a modern, vibrant town
centre experience with additional space
alongside our traditional markets - providing
more flexibility to host outdoor events, speciality
markets and create unigue experiences.

Market Square will remain home to Chesterfield’s
permanent market with New Square providing
temporary stalls on busy market days. Market
Square includes a central space that can be used

for smaller events to support the market use. New
Square will include a large flexible space for seasonal
events, markets and moments of celebration.

e
SEany EEBARE

; 1 x *
i s . T
...- ._‘_' .- L 14# %
I = L -3
.\.._ ‘-. 'I._ . - _
i - 4 s
¥ sl &
A
N
"
h"’ .
i

Cinema Night

)
)
S
o
-
©

=
>
-
©
-
o
Q.
S
)

F—.

—
(G
LL
S
-
S
[
)
_g
.20
o0

11 W

'ﬁ_-'--t
I
-
B

Chesterfield by the Sea

o

g abed

Temporary Market Stalls

l

it = ' "

' rf il e t 1 | Il et
¥ _{’r.mgw sl % L.
| P =’

I..'
- '- e
B
S 5
i n o

o LT T e
!nll 14

¥ 16
r l -
L i

5': ' > r-—r | T";“*:; i *;: )
(LS 0 s | R
e e g 7 = .
S e e S T ¢ LU | E S
: :.F = *5.‘1: aafr.';thml ._ '§

= o T e —t TR A e : S

N TR AL = Revitalising the :
. i, A O - Y,

B ==y i R Heart of Chesterfield

== 8 : o
CHESTERFIELD B _ &

BOROUGH COUNCIL

/

[==]) ==l




) abed

Rykneld Square,

Parish Church and

connected streets

We want to make better use of
Rykneld Square as an open public
space - to better connect the town
centre and Crooked Spire and improve
the feel and flow of this area.

The square is currently an under-
used and predominantly hard space,
located immediately next to the Grade
1 listed Parish Church of St Mary and
All Saints. The square has potential

to create a much more welcoming
arrival and viewing point for the town's
iconic church. To establish a warm
welcome to both the church and the
town centre, Rykneld Square has

been re-imagined, to create a new
green area, inspired by the gardens
that once occupied this space.

CHESTERFIELD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

/

Packers Row
Improvement works
to be delivered
Summer 2022

New surfacing, seating and tree planting ——

The new-look square aims to improve
connectivity with the church and its
grounds by encouraging pedestrians
to move through the square to the
main church entrance. The square
presents a unique opportunity in the
town centre to create a new garden
space where tree planting will create
dappled shade, hedging will create
enclosure and ground cover planting
will deliver a range of colours and
scents. All elements come together
to create an attractive, restful and
welcoming space for visitors to enjoy.

The church grounds themselves will
have a much-improved connection
with the square. It is envisaged that
the church environment will be
improved though the introduction
of a renewed lighting scheme, tree
works, and planting. Footpath routes
around the church, particularly onto
St Mary’'s Gate, will be repaired to
improve both the route and access.

Inclusion of safety measures =]

As part of town centre strategy

Improved Lighting

Within the church
grounds to highlight
the feature building
and improve safety

Improved
ﬁproach to T
urch

: :: Rede5|gned Rykneld Square

.
i | b-

ff’o reintroduce a garden % | .

- area and present a beflttlng i -
approach to the church k| N
and associated grounds I\ @

Please note: Designs are early-stage concepts that will need further work to fully
resolve transport and highways aspects prior to implementation being possible.

ll“

F'- S—- '.’hﬂ—i ll.!‘ ﬁ

Clutter free pedestrian routes

Planting with texture, seasonal variety and pollinator friendly

Revitalising the

Heart of Chesterfield




g obed

Corporation

Street

Improved crossing to Church

\ N
Feature planting and paved area

To bridge landing

Corporation Street is a key gateway to the town centre
when arriving from the train station - welcoming
visitors and residents alike. Corporation Street
provides a key pedestrian route from the station to

— Widened pavement

p do Foug
the Parish Church and the town centre beyond. : [ £ £ ”J
= : &= Ui, .r’f ; . N &
We are considering options to adjust the balance 1‘3 “{"’4] i Ay ? ”@
of pedestrian and vehicle use to improve the /j '
environment for pedestrians, whilst balancing | 4
the need for vehicles to access the area. There } 5 Corporation Street

are currently two options being explored: 'f / reduced to one-way

Changing to a one-way street that permits
essential access whilst reducing the road
width and widening the pavements.

Accessible parking
and delivery bays

Option One

Closing a section of road between St Mary's Gate and
Station Street to all but essential vehicles. This would
create a fully pedestrianised street that would meet
the needs of the current uses of this street, whilst
delivering an attractive welcome to Chesterfield.

— Drop off and delivery bay g

~ /.
N [ ¢ A safe and welcoming Street
oy, :&‘\ | .
= Created by feature paving, :
4] s Pege | Corporation Street

street greening, seating

P raini
g w . and CCTV combined pedestrainised

Emergancy access and
service vehicles only

Street trees along pedestrianised routes

Option Two

Historic Stephenson Memorial Hall

- home to the Pomegranate Theatre

and Chesterfield Museum - dominates

Use of materials consistent '. | the Corporation Street skyline. It is

with the wider town centre gl R S e being transformed as part of a £17m
refurbishment, and improvements on

Corporation Street will create a warm

CHESTERFIELD AP welcome for visitors. Find out more
BOROUGH COUNCIL about this project at

References to the Pomegranate
Theatre & Cinema

/

www.chesterfield.gov.uk/revitalise

— Delivery lay-by

With vehicular access
maintained to Station
Road and Mill Street

N

O

Drop off and
delivery bay

With vehicular access
maintained to Station
Road and Mill Street

N

O

Revitalising the

Reduction to a
one-way street

Rebalancing the
street will place
greater emphasis
on the pedestrian
experience and
support the
adjacent uses.

Please note: Designs are
early-stage concepts that
will need further work

to fully resolve transport
and highways aspects
prior to implementation
being possible.

Partial road
closure

Removing traffic
from Corporation
Street enables the
creation of a new
piece of gateway
public realm and
a warm welcome
to visitors.

Please note: Designs are
early-stage concepts that
will need further work

to fully resolve transport
and highways aspects
prior to implementation
being possible.

Heart of Chesterfield

O

nonn BV
H EHE E Sar
—-— A‘ el

= [ 1] ERs -
Al Aan e

( TWSEUM
s

v W
LA




Improving the look,

feel and flow of the
town centre

S oLy

[——

Y 4

We want to create better-connected, better-

lOOkI ng pU bIIC Spaces that bU | ld on our prOUd A Heritage Plinth could be incorporated Seating and at could be combined Meanwhile use /activities can provide Pdtential for moréstylised totems Signage as an education tool
histo ry a nd heritage and provide a sense cut into paving and steps to narrate Chesterfield’s past with a playful element valuable opportunities for play in fitting with new furniture

of consistency across the town centre. To
achieve this, some key principles underpin Encourage play Wayfinding and signage

our vision across the regeneration area: Chesterfield's heritage is rich and diverse with many listed The vision aims to encourage playful activities throughout Effective and attractive signage is essential to create a legible
buildings and structures, the vision aims to celebrate this the town centre via both permanent and temporary informal network of spaces and to allow the effective movement
heritage through materials, furniture and wayfinding. play elements. Aiming to create an environment that through the town centre. Functional and sculptural signage

encourages children and adults alike to play and interact. will be implemented throughout the masterplan area, with
opportunities to incorporate heritage items and lighting.

The town has had a market since 1156 with the current market hall

i dating to 1857. Within the market site itself there are several Grade The playful elements are not intended to be prescriptive
® Il listed buildings located to Low Pavement and the Market Hall. play, but elements that incorporate the potential for
Some of the traditionally styled lamps are also Grade Il listed. play whilst also providing alternative uses.

The Water Pump which sits at the northwest corner of Market Square
is grade II* listed, with inscriptions from 1776 and 1826. This pump

is a key feature of Chesterfield’s outdoor market, formally a focal
point for public celebration and debate. The delivery of the vision

will re-establish the pump as a focal feature of Market Square.

&

000 R

L)

=

{ —t

'“'j"- o S =

Church of St Mary and Al New lighting will highlight the market hall Existing Church architectural lighting Tree canopiés providing shade | Covered market sta_]lls protecting Large planters containing trees_

Saints ‘crooked spire’ adds interest but could be improved and cooling the area against all weather
Lighting and digital connectivity Sustainability and climate change
The proposals celebrate the historic views of the Church of St Mary and Lighting and digital connectivity Under Chesterfield Borough Council’s Climate Change Action It is essential that the town centre improvements create a safe and

All Saints and Chesterfield Market Hall. These buildings act as important
wayfinding markers for those making their way through the town
centre. Improved lighting will further celebrate these iconic buildings
and add a vibrant dynamic to Chesterfield during the darker hours.

Plan, we aim to be a carbon neutral borough by 2050. inviting place for residents and visitors. The proposals include a
range of measures including CCTV, bollards, street furniture and

planting to ensure that the town centre is kept as safe as possible.

Attractive lighting and new digital facilities will feature across
the regeneration sites - creating a more attractive, better Embedding green principles into the future of our town
connected and safe town centre for everyone to enjoy. centre will support this, and the following proposals can

These are being commissioned separately be found within these initial concept designs:

but will in principle our aim is to:  Control of traffic to reduce pollution levels.

« Use lighting to create character, ambience and focus in
key areas while creating an environment which feels
safe and secure, and deters anti-social behaviour

Lighting that considers ecological impacts as well power efficiency

The re-use of existing materials

Revitalising the

Heart of Chesterfield

Increase in town centre planting and biodiversity including

* Increase the digital connectivity in the town centre, street trees for shading and carbon absorption

supporting the 5G roll out, and to help us better understand
and respond to how people use the town centre

Natural drainage systems

Further canopies over stalls to provide shade and shelter

CHESTERFIELD

BOROUGH COUNCIL Climate change and sustainability will be key considerations
throughout the ongoing development and delivery of the
Revitalising the Heart of Chesterfield Master Plan.

/




What happens
next?

Packers Row —
Rykneld Square

High Street

_"‘:. .
4 = 3 am
i gof %o &
‘ - ¥,
- - - - - gt
2] -
) i = i F'Y = e L
a' 8 & * = T i
% = d . _ 2 = TS :
¥ i & - . o4 ‘
g g F = 4 - - -
v o i 5 ‘_"' iy rig ¥ - F . = A
It - | - - . ¥
- 1 = -
- T y §
" .. ‘
I
e L 1
. 4
- =

Burlington Street

Market Square

Low Pavement

Your views are important to us How can | have my say

0T obed

remember, you can also see the full draft designs online at: Scan the QR code to the right or visit
www.chesterfield.gov.uk/revitalise www.chesterfield.gov.uk/revitalise
, - o to fill in our online survey
These town centre plans build on our existing proposals to revitalise
Chesterfield Market which we consulted on last year, and we have continued Complete a paper copy and post in the
to engage with local traders to shape updated designs for the market. ballot box in the exhibition room.
We're seeking further comments on our extended Revitalising the The deadline for comments is
Heart of Chesterfield project, which you will have seen now go midnight on Friday 8 July 2022.
beyond improvements to just Market Square and New Square - and If you would like to request this information
aim to improve the look, feel and flow or our town centre. in an alternative format, please contact

A

We hope you have found this exhibition useful - and

on the proposals?

policyteam@chesterfield.gov.uk

CHESTERFIELD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

# -;-"l e s B SE R
A = hy ot e Pl al” -_- - A
! N L= i .
) b T o N e
" - L 3 3 [ s . 1
A - ol
[ Fiogm
o ol 4 ' .
i .! -
v L i
e ']
g ; .
B Jj

T T o :
~ = e | P } =
1 o AT T gl o~
4 4 1
S & '-J_q' it v e
R - -
¥ S - N i Lol
T by =)
L 1 - F
t\'- o f
5 A e
e
. Al il
¥ Ry g
| 3
L4

Parish Church of
St. Mary and All Saints

— Corporation Street

Next steps =

We hope to gather views from as many people as
possible to help shape the next phase of our plans.

It's important that we understand what matters to local people - and
what you want from your town centre in the future - before we draw

up final designs and options across these

As plans progress, we will continue to wor
closely with local people and businesses.

Key sites in the town centre.

K

If you would like to keep up to date with the latest project
news, there is chance to enter your email address as part of the

survey. The latest news will also be shared on our website at

www.chesterfield.gov.uk/revitalise

Revitalising the

Heart of Chesterfield




Appendix A

REFERENCE
2T66A

PROJECT NAME

REVITALISING THE HEART
OF CHESTERFIELD

DOCUMENT y

RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

TT abed

“CyENT
CFESTERFIELD B.C.
L

STATUS
DRAFT

DATE
01/04/22



kearseyc
Typewriter
Appendix A


DOCUMENT CONTROL

FILE NAME
2766A-1D-001-02-CHESTERFIELD TOWN CENTRE TRANSFORMATION

PREPARED BY (INITIALS)

JTO D iﬁ\
CHECKED BY (INITIALS)
GB

2T obed



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

Contents
1INTRODUCTION AND PLANNING CONTEXT 4
1.1 The Ambition 5

1.2 Scope of the Project

2HISTORICAL CONTEXT 7
2.1 Chesterfield's Historical Timeline 8
2.2 Social and Cultural History: A Focus of Politics and Protest 11
2.3 Historical Map Analysis 12
2.4 Historical Map Comparison 13
2.5 Heritage and Conservation 14
BUNDERSTANDING THE TOWN 15
QD
‘%.l Town Centre Destinations 16
=2 Building Occupancy Type - Market Squares 17
3.3 Building Occupancy Type - Church, Rykneld Square and Corporation Street 18
3.4 Pedestrian and Cycle Routes 19
3.5 Adopted/Unadopted Highways 20
3.6 Archaeological Features 21
3.7 Dwell Space and Active Streets 22
3.8 Greenspace and Tree Coverage 23
3.9 Hard Materials Analysis - Market Square 24
3.10 Hard Materials Analysis - Rykneld Square, Church and Corporation Street 25
3.11 Furniture Typology Analysis - Market Square 26
3.12 Furniture Distribution Analysis - Market Square 28
3.13 Furniture Typology Analysis - Rykneld Square, Church and Corporation Street 29
3.14 Furniture Distribution Analysis - Rykneld Square to Corporation Street 31
40PPORTUNITIES AND CONSTRAINTS 32
4.1 Opportunities and Challenges- Market and New Squares 33
4.2 Opportunities and Challenges - Rykneld Square and St Mary and All Saints Church
34
4.3 Opportunities and Challenges - Corporation Street 35
SPRECEDENT STUDY AND SCALE COMPARISON 36
5.1 Market Square Scale Comparison - Old Market Square, Nottingham 37
5.2 Church and Rykneld Square Scale Comparison - Blackburn Cathedral 38
5.3 Corporation Street Scale Comparison - Fishergate, Preston 39
6VISION AND CONCEPT DESIGN 40
6.1 Overall Vision Masterplan 41
6.2 Proposed Character Areas 42
6.3 The Market Quarter - Proposed Spatial Arrangement 43

6.4 The Market Quarter- Celebrating Identity 44
6.5 The Market Quarter - Urban Greening and Sustainability 45
6.6 The Market Quarter - Social Dwell and Active Edges 46
6.7 The Market Quarter - Destination Events 47
6.8 Market Square Proposals 48
6.9 Market Square Precedents 49
6.10 New Square Proposals 50
6.11 New Square Precedents 51
6.12 New Square Activation 52
6.13 New Square Activation 53
6.14 Low Pavement 54
6.15 High Street Plan 55
6.16 Streetscene Precedents 56
6.17 Pocket Square 57
6.18 Pocket Square Precedents 58
6.19 Burlington Street 59
6.20 Burlington Street Precedents 60
6.21 Church and Rykneld Square - Proposed Spatial Arrangement 61
6.22 Church and Rykneld Square Vision - Urban Greening and Sustainability 62
6.23 Church and Rykneld Square Vision - Social Dwell 63
6.24 Rykneld Square 64
6.25 Rykneld Square Precedents 65
6.26 St. Mary and All Saints Church 66
6.27 St. Mary and All Saints Church 67
6.28 Corporation Street Option 1 - reduction to a one-way street 68
6.29 Corporation Street Option 2 - Partial Road Closure 69
6.30 Corporation Street Precedents 70
6.31 Overall Vision - Embrace Heritage 71
6.32 Overall Vision - Encourage Play 7?2
6.33 Overall Vision - Wayfinding and Signage 73
6.34 Overall Vision - Landmark Views 74
6.35 Overall Vision - A Safe Space 75
6.36 Overall Vision - Lighting 76
TTHE MARKET 77
7.1 Existing Market Provision 78
7.2 Existing Photos 79
7.3 Proposed Market Stall Design - Being developed with traders and subject to
further consultation 80
7.4 Proposed Permanent Market Stall Layout - Market Square (subject to continued
trader input) 81

7.5 Possible Temporary Market Stall Layout - New Square (subject to continued trader

input) 82
7.6 Proposed Market Stall Layouts 3D arrangement 83
7.7 New Square and Market Square - Overall Branding 84
8CREATING A SAFE SPACE 85
8.1 Existing Vehicular Access Control Measures 86
8.2 Allowing For Necessary Vehicular Access And Servicing 87
8.3 Proposed HVM Protection 88
8.4 Proposed HVM Protection - New Square 89
8.5 Proposed HVM Protection - Market Square 90
8.6 Proposed HVM Protection - Burlington Street and Church Lane 91
8.7 Proposed HVM Protection - Vicar Lane and South Street 92
9OMATERIALITY 93
9.1 Approach to Materials 94
9.2 Treatment of Existing Setts 95
9.3 Re-use of Existing Setts - Understanding the Existing Condition 96
9.4 Approach to Planting 97
9.5 Climate change and adaptation and considerations for the public realm 98
9.6 Existing Trees and Planting - Market Square 99
9.7 Species Selection - Street Trees to Predominantly Hard Areas 100
9.8 Existing Trees and Planting - Church Grounds 101
9.9 Species Consideration - Church and Rykneld Square 102
9.10 Existing Trees and Planting - Corporation Street 103
9.11 Approach to Landscape Maintenance 104
10FURTHER INFORMATION 105
10.1 Public Transport and Bus Links 106
10.2 Vehicular Movement 107
10.3 Public and Private Car Parks 108
10.4 Taxi Ranks and Drop Off 109
10.5 Utilities - New Square and Market Square 110
10.6 Utilities - Rykneld Square and Church 111
10.7 Utilities - Corporation Street 112
10.8 Below Ground constraints - New Square 113
11SUPPORTING DRAWINGS 114
11.1 Overall General Arrangement 115
11.2 Market Quarter 116
11.3 Burlington Street 117
11.4 Rykneld Square and the Church interface 118
11.5 Corporation Street - One way scheme 119
11.6 Corporation Street - Partial road closure 120

PAGE 3



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

T abed

PAGE 4

INTRODUCTION AND,

}PLANNING CONTEXT

™ N;




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

1.1 The Ambition

CORPORATION
STREET

PARISH CHURCH OF
ST. MARY AND ALL

. u

% \ -" T .
. PACKERS | | RVKNELD SQUARE
| ROW "y . y
. * T TRy ! : * .l'_‘_...v"'

STEPHENSON

MEMORIAL HALL ;:

. m‘ﬁ '*...,':" ¥ l,‘.

e et ."‘.i-l
P

This vision document for Chesterfield's Market Squares, Rykneld Square, and Corporation Street together with adjacent streets, has been
commissioned by Chesterfield Borough Council as part of their successful Levelling Up fund submission.

This document has been prepared by Planit-IE on behalf of
Chesterfield Borough Council and represents concept ideas

for the public realm regeneration of the town centre within the
bid area. Funding was also secured to refurbish the existing
Stephenson Memorial Hall, which is being progressed separately

The purpose of this document is to establish a concept
masterplan framework for the Levelling Up project area as
part of Chesterfield's Revitalising the Heart of Chesterfield
ambitions. This will set quality and aesthetic standards aimed

The following document provides a review of the town's

heritage, a thorough analysis of the study area, and identifies
key considerations and constraints. This knowledge has been
used as a basis to develop the vision and concept design with

The masterplan above demonstrates the extent of the
Revitalising the Heart of Chesterfield project and the scale

of Chesterfield Borough Council's ambition to provide
meaningful regeneration of the town centre for the benefit of its

at regenerating the town centre, helping to drive footfall and particular detail, and consideration placed on Market Square, communities and visitors.
to this commission but is referenced in concept designs and connectivity, improving dwell times, and enabling activation. New Square, Rykneld Square, St. Mary's and All Saint’s Church, ) )
considerations for Corporation Street. and Corporation Street. The adjacent plan demonstrates the phasing schedule as part of
The provision of a consolidated framework enables phased the Levelling Up funding, starting with Corporation Street as the
implementation and more effective consideration of potential first phase. It isimportant to note that the area of Packer’s Row
investments or developments.

(phase 3) is included in the Levelling Up funding but is being
delivered on-site as of February 2022.

PAGE 5



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

1.2 Scope of the Project

The adjacent diagram represents the

scoping plan that was submitted as part of

the Levelling Up fund bid submission. This
diagram, initially prepared by Whittam Cox
Architects, identifies the areas highlighted for
significant public realm works and the resultant
Improvements to town centre connectivity.

The project also includes the development of strategies around
lighting and digital connectivity. These are currently being
commissioned separately to this vision but will form an integral
part of the final delivery design.

The scoping plan includes Packers Row. This street has been
detailed to construction level and is due to commence on-site in
Spring 2022, it will be the first phase of LUF delivery.

~ 9T obed

EY

m (Overall Boundary

/) Development Zones
% Connectivity Links/Locations

PAGE 6




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

/T abed

HISTORICAL CONTEX

Ny

PAGE 7



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

2.1 Chesterfield's Historical Timeline

8T obed

PAGE 8

Chesterfield has historically been a settlement since
Roman times, arriving around 70AD a fort named

the Fort Of Castrafield was occupied by soldiers until
around 117AD. The name Castrafield means ‘standing
walls in a field” and early English later changed this
name to Chesterfield, which means Open Land By The
Fort.

Archaeological excavations at Vicar Lane found post
holes of two or three buildings situating the original
Roman fort location, around 50 yards west of the St
Mary’s and All Saints Church. Signs of an annex to this
fort from 14-150AD were also unearthed around Spa
Lane demonstrate the historic occupation of the site.

The first signs of the Anglo Saxons can be found in the
font of St Mary’s and All Saints Church which is dated
from around 850-1050AD

Chesterfield’s Medieval past can be found in the
remains of the burgage plots, alley ways, church path,
and a market place surrounded by medieval strip fields.
Markets have been held as early as 1156 on a site to the
north of the Parish church, and in 1204 it was granted
the right by King John to hold twice weekly market, and
an eight day annual fair. It was around this time that
the church received the dedication ‘All Saints’

St Mary’s and All Saints Church’s building works began
in 1234 at the eastern side which is where the oldest
pillars can be found. Over time, the church has faced
difficulties such as the Reformation, 19th Century
building works, and a fire in 1961.

Most of the streets in the town centre follow the lines
designed when the town was laid out afresh to the west
of the older centre around the parish church, following
the grant of a Borough Charter in 1204. By the 13th
century the pattern of present day boundaries, roads,
and streets was established and the market was moved
from its previous site to the present day site.

1882 SEPTEMBER FAIR

1928 MARKET AERIAL VIEW



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6T obed

By the 17th century, Chesterfield grew but not as much
as other places affected by the Industrial Revolution.
The surrounding coal fields, however, were a source of
income and growth in the early 18th century, and the
Market Hall was built in 1857 along with most buildings
around Corporation Street. Also built during this time
was the Alpine Gardens at Rykneld Square adjacent

to St Mary’s and All Saints Church. The gardens
established a path through the north side of the
Churchyard, connecting the town centre to the railway
station. The gardens were opened in 1909 and removed
in 1932 to allow for the development of Rykneld Square
as a thoroughfare.

The Stephenson Memorial Hall came into council
ownership in 1889, and land was acquired at the east
end of the building to enlarge the public hall and adapt
it as a theatre. It opened in 1898 with a new stage and
dressing rooms and became known as the Corporation
Theatre, hosting a variety of plays, concerts, and local
amateur productions.

In 1926 the theatre was leased to a cinema company
until 1948.

By the 1920's many of the slums were cleared away
from the town centre and more modern buildings were
introduced. Manufacturing industries thrived on the
edge of town but by late 20th century had declined.
Service industries like tourism and retail became more
important, such as the Pavement Shopping Centre in
1981 and Vicar Lane Shopping Centre in 2000.

RYKNELD SQAURE 1910 SOURCE: ACHESTERFIELDBLOGGER.CO.UK

Alpine Gardens cI910
ALPINE GARDEN 1910 SOURCE: ACHESTERFIELDBLOGGER.CO.UK VIA CHESTERFIELD PHOTOGRAPHY SOCIETY

PAGE 9



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

0z abed

PAGE 10

In 1940 all the church railings were removed and
the metal used for the War Effort. The railings were
replaced in 2013.

In 1974, after the re-organisation of local government,
the control of Chesterfield’s library, housed within

the Stephenson Memorial Hall, passed to Derbyshire
County Council. Subsequently, in 1992 the Stephenson
Memorial Hall was chosen to be a museum for
Chesterfield.

The Memorial Hall is currently divided into two, one
part housing Chesterfield Museum, and the other the
home to the Pomegranate Theatre.

The current coat of arms was given to the borough on
10 November 1955. It contains regionally significant
symbols . The Pomegranate theatre was named after
the pomegranate tree on the shield. Adopted by Henry
VIIl as a badge on his marriage to Catherine of Aragon,
its use is considered to be a symbol of loyalty to the
crown.

E

HISTORIC VIEW OF ST MARY AND ALL SAINTS CHURCH DATE UNKNOWN SOURCE: ACHESTERFIELDBLOGGER.CO.UK

ST MARY'S AND ALL SAINTS CHURCH DATE UNKNOWN

STEPHENSON MEMORIAL HALL - ENGLISH HERITAGE



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

2.2 Social and Cultural History: A Focus of Politics and Protest

Throughout its history Chesterfield’s Market
Square and New Square have been a focal
point of civic pride, protest and celebration.

The central location, wide hard space, and open views allowed
the squares to be used a focal point for people to gather and
once hosted many passionate speeches and parades.

Royal milestones were celebrated by Chesterfield people. In 1887
Crowds gathered in the Market Place to celebrate the Queen's
Golden Jubilee, an event that included a civic procession, a
special tea for the elderly, and a firework display.

ghrough the development of this vision, these squares have
otential to be a place of meeting once again as the iconic views

pdy1d open space remain.

o

LANDMARKS

The crooked spire of the parish church has long been a feature

of the town leading to many references to it throughout history.
The odd shape has been speculated with many stories over the
years and fans of Chesterfield Football Club are called Spireites
inits honour.

et

ADELE PANKHURST VISIT 1910 MINER'S GALA 1902

R

VE DAY 1945

PAGE 11



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

2.3 Historical Map Analysis

A growing town with the market at its core.

Linnerys |

\ .‘-:?:"":; " '&;

St
M =

Key Features of Chesterfield in 1883

Strong north to south urban grain focussed around New Square and Market Square,
a significant open space at the heart of Chesterfield since the 1800s.

Key routes of Gluman Gate, Low Pavement, Corporation Street, Burlington Street and
High Street have long been established.

Outside of the dense town centre much of the surrounding area was farmland which
fed into its market-town status.

River Hipper formed the southern boundary to the town and retained its naturalistic
meandering form.

The church was enclosed by surrounding buildings.

Connections, northsouth connections are stronger than eastwest.

PAGE 12

The adjacent historical maps illustrate Chesterfield’s growth and
development over the last 150 years, with its streetscape based
upon its medieval origins.

Key Features of Chesterfield in 1918

Strong north to south urban grain focussed around New Square and Market Square
expands into former surrounding farmland and gardens, and increases in density.

The Market Hall, New Square and Market Square remain a central feature, but with
New Square divided by the tramway.

The tramway prevents further expansion of the urban grain to the southwest, but
other key central routes have been introduced.

The Alpine Garden, west of the church, forms a connection between the church and
Market Place.

Key Features of Chesterfield in 1946

The strong north to south urban grain focussed around New Square and Market
Square has remained, though there are some areas where small gaps have appeared
and the density reduced.

The Market Hall, New Square and Market Square no longer contain the tramway
route as this was removed, and New Square in particular is made bigger.

New roads crossing east to west such as Rose Hill have appeared as reliance on cars
increases.

The Alpine Garden has been removed and replaced by a new thoroughfare, Rykneld
Square.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

2.4 Historical Map Comparison

\ oy

Market Ha.":?_ ..... o T
NEW SQUARE | '

R s

E.F. :
293 EHJFE-&I i PLACE™™ A
..... ok - *'Igﬁ- ¢ ﬁﬁ;ﬁ
A R . 9 2\
[ 3 e W S
n A RN T - M E N
g ] U opien . .
b I, : | .;l‘ e -.ll:'lr' ] | e "":' .r-rf 2 Sl T * + e SO T, : J
I @ ) FAF A SH CAMdAadAd A s % Jass S
Y
:_ 'rr"flll-l'E‘f
Mary & AlL Saints

<= ) S ‘ &
Y B oL

b g bk Wy

* . :.J =

-

2182k =N
;__,..-F_,.'.:ll s
MARKET AREA CHURCH AREA
KEY OBSERVATIONS KEY OBSERVATIONS
Road lines, building geometry, and structure has largely +More road infrastructure has been added as more people « The church was surrounded by buildings making it less « Rykneld Square was once an Alpine Garden which was in
remained the same around the Market Hall. became reliant on vehicles. connected to other areas of the town. The removal of existence between 1909 and 1932. It was removed to allow
Many buildings have been rebuilt and modernised but follow «  The historical, tightly packed, linear grain of buildings have building§ ?”d ad(.jition of Rykneld Square imp.roved better vehicle access to the church for ceremonies and
the historical urban grain. been replaced with more recent larger scale developments connectivity making the grounds more accessible from the parades.

) ) town centre.
The outdoor market areas have remained virtually

unchanged though the Market Hall has been extended into
New Square.

« Thelayout of the church grounds has largely remained
the same although there is now additional access and a
memorial to the north of the church.

PAGE 13



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

2.5 Heritage and Conservation

Chesterfield boasts a rich history with many listed
buildings and features which led to the Town
Centre's conservation status in November 1976.

«  The Church of St Mary's and All Saints is the only Grade |
listed building in the town centre conservation area. This
iconic medieval church is known for its crooked spire, gothic
and early English architecture, and is a key wayfinding
landmark in the town.

« Chesterfield holds a handful of Grade II* listed buildings
and features, such as, the Unitarian Chapel built in 1694, the
railings outside of Pageants Insurance from the early 18th
century, Royal Oak Inn from the 16th century, and property of
9 Beetwell Street which was recorded in 1479 as a gift to the
local Parish Church.

« Inthe centre of Market Square is a Grade II* listed feature
of special interest which is the Town Pump. A large, cast
iron pump and basin from 1826 sat atop a octagonal stone
plinth with "1776" inscription. This feature demonstrates how
Market Square has long been key feature of Chesterfield’s
town centre as a source of water for residents and cattle
on market day, and as a meeting point which can be seen
throughout the years in many historical photographs.

There are many Grade Il buildings and features throughout
the remainder of the town centre conservation area, of which
a large number are situated around New Square and Market
Square, including the Market Hall itself.

yz abed -

The Grade Il Stephenson Memorial Hall, built in 1879 by
public subscription as a memorial to the railway pioneer
George Stephenson, provides a striking gothic style addition
to Corporation Street

MARKET TOWN SQUARE PUMP

PAGE 14

OS MAP SHOWING CHESTERFIELD TOWN CENTRE CONSERVATION AREA WITH ITS KEY ASSETS



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

Gz abed

PAGE 15



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.1 Town Centre Destinations

Chesterfield Market occupies a central well served |
location vv|lth|nthetovyn,vv|th thg Parish Chgrch 1EF < g | ¥ . tE 2L AN, Wl 7R ' corporatioN f *
of St. Mary's and All Saints providing a key visitor &7 o A e oy Fner . W ; b stReer [

destination and orientation point to the east. ¥ : ! b - £ 8 LN W BT

The dominant buildings of the Market Hall and Church provide
both visual and physical bookends along Burlington Street, and
establish two primary destinations within the town centre.

The project site occupies a dominant east to west circulation
route from which the majority of other town centre destinations
can be easily reached within a few minutes walk .

- 9z obed. -

Market Hall 10.  Shentall Gardens
Outdoor Markets: New Square
and Market Square 11.  Train Station
Library
12.  Parish Church
Coach Station
Police Station 13. Multi-Storey Car Park
Retail areas
14. Queen's Park
7. Chesterfield Town Hall
15.  Cricket Ground
8.  Theatre/cinema
N e & . -
9. Museum (D _ i T R, L , X o L e & 1@ I CHURCH

4 RYKNELD
SQUARE

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

« Maintain visual connectivity between points of
interest and town centre landmarks.

« Consider improvements to re-enforce connectivity
between primary destinations.

+ Develop a legible wayfinding strategy.

« Recognise the town's heritage and develop a strategy
of interpretation.

PAGE 16



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.2 Building Occupancy Type - Market Squares

The Market sits within a wider
retail and services hub.

Chesterfield's Market Square and surrounding network of streets
house a typical town centre array of retail and service industry
shops, with a small number of offices, including the council
headquarters, within close proximity.

Residential dwellings are largely outside of the immediate
centre.

L
[MER

/¢ abed

ERVAOS

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

« Considerimprovements that will encourage active use
of the streetscape - pavement dining, spill out spaces.
Especially to the streets adjacent to Market Square
and New Square.

E9Vd LEBRRI

«  Deliver an uncluttered frontage to key retail areas.

= Red Line Boundary
[ Retail
[ Residential
[ Business/Offices
Food and Beverage
I services
I Governmental
Transport
[ Leisure and Hospitality
I Flace Of Worship

CHESTERFIELD FOOD AND BEVERAGE BUILDINGS

PAGE 17



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.3 Building Occupancy Type - Church, Rykneld Square and Corporation Street

The Church marks the transition
from retail to food and beverage,
entertainment, and office uses

Burlington Street at its junction with Rykneld Square remains
dominated by retail. Rykneld Square sees an increase in food
and beverage, and entertainment uses. To the east of the
church uses become more diverse with the inclusion of office
and cultural venues, in particular the theatre and museum on
Corporation Street.

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

Consider improvements that will encourage active
use of the streetscape - pavement dining, spill out
spaces etc.

g¢ abed

Deliver an uncluttered frontage to key retail areas.

e Red Line Boundary

SQUARE

RURLINGTON STREET I Retail
- II [ Residential

I". RYINELD
i
|

[ Business/Offices

Food and Beverage

| n
i

[ services
— ] I Governmental
CHURCH LANE
« Transport

[ Leisure and Hospitality
I Flace Of Worship

CORPORATION STREET THEATRE AND BARS

PAGE 18



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.4 Pedestrian and Cycle Routes

The market is accessed via an
interconnected network of key routes.

« Main pedestrian routes follow historical and established
streets and roads, many of which are alongside vehicular
routes.

« Secondary routes are those which are lesser used between
narrow buildings, or desire lines across New Square and
Market Square.

«  There are no real dedicated cycle lanes, apart from one

disjointed cycle lane along New Beetwell Street to the south

of the site.

6¢ abed

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

« Ensure that public realm design proposals reflect and
acknowledge existing movement routes.

« Aim to increase pedestrian access and permeability,
in particular through the market squares.

« Improve the arrival experience from the station via
Corporation Street.

« Encourage green travel options.

HIGH STREET PRIMARY PEDESTRIAN ROUTE

[ | | B
| G —— __.-' i - e
|I 'I = [ .'I f Sl ~ L] o i & £ b Nt ) - h
[\ | | J = o SALTEREATE y- % & o . ) ;
| A | . 42 2 e - Z= LA f.f i i Train Station 2| 3
[ | e [l | JEE [ - { : / d Min Walk
'§|‘ ! | | _I | |
—— J¢ | (& = |
_-'——-\,'I . I | = gr—.a-
— ][] j . { | § O !
Chesterfield | | === E|| ¥ | | | [
Town Hall | = | "'_{ | N
I L r-. I| | I— | .
|II - Bl = = = :
1 b | ' 1] - |
ll e — || I_ E— e :
L — — i R coiLSAly R N
_-;=:-—-_- . '.||-F‘- | |
1 1 | |
| ||I—-|_ I..-—'

| = | "mamsasnes
e BTN
L
|
1
|

1
1
! ' .
n P
- I— = - TR S e
S . = _— 1
- = v 7 "
LOWP‘WEMET - \\\‘ i
Chesterfield ==~L_[ '
SENILRATS PA\VEM
A

Market Hall

-
- e .

'vn@mmg~ - _\‘

[ = = (ORIERET =

i/
! ?f

=== Red Line Boundary

mm mm Primary Pedestrian Route

== == Secondary Pedestrian Routes
eeeeee Dedicated Cycle Lane

Pedestrian Zone
PAGE 19



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.5 Adopted/Unadopted Highways

Whether a road is adopted or unadopted affects the materials, maintenance, and standard of design.

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:
The site mainly consists of adopted highways, however New Square, « All proposed public realm improvements within the adopted highway
Market Square, and some of the surrounding streets are not currently will require discussions with Derbyshire County Council highways, and
within highways adoption.

Ensure early engagement with the Highways
lighting teams, and the completion of S278 / S38 agreements.

Authority.
Any proposed works within the adopted highway will be need to

- Balance durability and functionality of materials,
consider future ownership and long term maintenance mechanisms of
both hard and soft elements.

and understand maintenance obligations.

Commence legal agreements in a timely manner.

NEERNSHCEISERIOS
FLVONVWNRD
A/ @zl

Ay

CORRORATION STREIE

0€ abed

QYO ) ==

KEY
Red Line Boundary
S adopted Highway

W= nadopted highway
PAGE 20

O



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.6 Archaeological Features

Rykneld Square has undergone two
archaeological investigations providing a glimpse
into the town's origins

« Archaeological explorations in Rykneld Square have revealed

RYKNELD SQ

the town's Iron Age, Roman, and medieval history. The most I'r.-“' N 2 .l.n:,ru,.}z” EFU' "",'L:'m"[umi‘u“ it

- 1 WTEAE L] |
recent excavations were undertaken in the 1990s during i Rkl - I
re-development. Once recorded, as per the adjacent images, I T

Flan Shewing Frevunn Archacologsol .

the excavations were re-instated. Discaveries in Vicimty

« Thedepths of the excavations are currently not known but it g s 1200 s
. P L y . . sresung 32 drgnage channel  mpan —l.hn
is understood that records pertaining to the digs are held in e
the HER Library in Matlock. ]
There is less archaeological data west of the line of KEY

Packers Row, and there are no County records of previous
archaeological investigations here right through to Market
Square.

T¢ obed

I - 1%74 Excavation
/ |'I:_.- - [:I 1 Excavalion

«  Priorto undertaking the next stage of design a full
archaeological desk top survey should be undertaken to
establish the potential extent of archaeological remains.
Following this, trial, holes may be required to corroborate
the desktop findings and establish any design and

construction constraints. L [ , P,
- ! '
«  The presence of archaeology within Rykneld Square provides == _— !
an opportunity to include of heritage interpretation within (yPlanter 3 L A | 1 9757 I !
the public realm designs. (= j‘ RN o - 97545
P g7 i
g ;}' drainage :t‘m:ll_,.r"' l
B |y
Planterd | | . I
: {
|
@)
' 1
’ 1
!

Crasdipg

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

Consider any archaeological constraints when
undertaking detailed design and obtain advice on
depths of archaeological planes.

Acknowledge the town's origins though
interpretation.

Commission a desk top survey and undertake trial s __mm _mlm .
pit excavations if needed. . Fig4 |
RYKNELD SQUARE PROPOSALS WITH EXCAVATION FEATURES SHOWN ARCHEOLOGICAL PLANS SHOWING EXTENT OF 1974 AND 1999 EXCAVATIONS IN RYKNELD SQUARE

PAGE 21



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.7 Dwell Space and Active Streets

Dwell space represents an area where time
can be spent, usually seated. Active edges
are edges or facades that encourage activity,
for example seating outside a cafe.

IHE MARKET

«  Few dwell spaces are available, especially on the east side of
the market square.

«  Current dwell spaces are basic and seating locations

aren't necessarily located to optimise views, greenery, or
sociability.

« Although Market Square is surrounded by shops and
businesses, very few take the opportunity to use the space
for spill out. Improvements to the public realm could further

ACTIVE EDGES OUTSIDE THE MARKET PUB ACTIVE EDGE ON MARKET PLACE NEW SQUARE UNUSED DWELL SPACE
encourage active edges, establishing seating areas that are
more enjoyable to experience.
I ]
DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS: °
+ Create greater opportunities for dwell and pavement % [ | | Ad '
seating. : % A d » 1 .
« Create a public realm that is flexible in use to enable f 5 §' §Q'7 d "
the development of an events programme that will | & o / T =
i 3 of LT i
o drive footfall. | & o
m = &l i @- B :.g.\:..l
% « Consider opportunities for play. o
w u 1 | P, r @g, i . = __' : o
- = ) S | EESMIIHCATE 47 e -
- - ® -
i (] ) ) # I
w 3 1 S i 4
== it
% : .
[l | - ) o
I . ¥ I
1 1 :’ g
g 2 | i
B Sl = ¢
| ] - . @T
~— e ST

| |
oo o — | 1

(RN G ST R T ———— | |
g CHUREH LANE /5
o &
@) .
St
| ) : KEY g
% 3 =T RedLine Boundary
% 1%, % . Bwell Space i
% %% ® ® Active Strestfood ahd beverage with spill out

PAGE 22



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.8 Greenspace and Tree Coverage

Greenspace and tree cover adds to the character, = ' | v/ =
biodiversity, and appeal of an urban area. ~ —

« Thereis currently very little vegetation and green space
within Chesterfield town centre, and almost all of the

vegetation is situated to the west of the site. sATBResTE

« There are a few mature existing trees providing shelter and
wind mitigation in New Square and along New Pavement.

«  There are also a few neglected raised planters on West Bars
and High Street.

The church grounds provide the largest area of green space
and tree coverage. Offering a range of tree species unlike the

predominantly plane tree planting within the remainder of .
the town centre. X : | 0

ELDER WA
1 = ‘

€€ abed -

While not in the site, Queen's Park is in close proximity, an 8
minute walk away.

Detailed tree surveys have been undertaken. Details
of which are included later in this document.

g.. STESIaYE)

M,
Rk

Design considerations:

=
TSI AR -

+ Retain existing tree cover where possible and seek to
supplement with new tree planting.

WEST BARS

T

|
|
coRFld A AN

« Consider the removal of hard areas and replace with
soft.

.

et

+  Seek to improve town centre biodiversity and -"'_:.'f % N ‘ g
consider the implications of climate change.

+ Develop long term management and maintenance
processes.

Queen's Park 81 |
MinWalk |/
)

PN Bz,
El

Red Line Boundary

3 ¥ AR o T
Tree Coverage = =
Planted Containers

N £
Lawns (D — = T T

MATURE EXISTING TREES IN NEW SQUARE

PAGE 23



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.9 Hard Materials Analysis - Market Square

The mix of historic hard materials in the square
adds to the character and identity of the space.

« Local Yorkstone flags and setts add character and texture.

« Thelayout of the Yorkstone is flush, yet the distribution of
the flags, setts, and kerbs breaks up the space and indicates
key routes and restricted vehicular access.

« Yorkstone banding highlights pedestrian routes and the
location of the market stalls in Market Square.

« Newer concrete products highlight the current market
trading area in New Square and also pick up an area of
public realm with raised planters to the south west of the
square.

+  Concrete cube banding ties in with Yorkstone banding in
New Square.

+  Thelightly coloured materials compliment the distinctive red
brick market hall which sits centrally on the site.

Although the quality of the materials is generally high, through
the use of local gritstone and Yorkstone, the market squares fail
to establish a strong character. The squares are spatially very
generous which can be overwhelming, especially on non-market
days.

he use of concrete products in a prime heritage location should
abe questioned.
«Q

%atches of mortar are visible due to past repairs. The proposal

Jshould seek to re-use and re-purpose existing materials
where possible, supplemented with new materials to provide
'highlights' or establish a renewed focus.

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

+ Reuse and repurpose existing materials where
possible.

« New materials should enhance the cultural and
heritage setting.

.« Consideration should be given to local sourcing of
materials where possible.

PAGE 24

|

~ERVADS MEN-

III
L
. tmou
|
{
|

__
v oNoHl
e i \
\d|

D)
S |

~
S e
S ™
. .
T,
KEY

== Red Line Boundary

[ vorkstone Flags

I Yorkstone Setts

Bl Yorkstone Flags with Yorkstone

B Setts underneath Market Stalls
Concrete Setts

= Concrete Cube Setts Banding

o YOTKStONE Setts Banding

Il Concrete Paving
@ Water Pump on Yorkstone Plinth

O

YORKSTONE FLAGS YORKSTONE SETTS CONCRETE PAVING CONCRETE SETTS



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.10 Hard Materials Analysis - Rykneld Square, Church and Corporation Street

Burlington to Corporation Street fails to present a
unified and consistent approach to public realm

materials.

Gg abed -

KEY

[ Yorkstone Flags
[ Yorkstone Setts
[ Macadam Surfacing
- Concrete Setts

Apart from the church environment, Burlington Street to

Corporation Street is dominated by small module concrete

paving.

Existing materials create an underwhelming sense of place

and fail to deliver an appropriate arrival when entering
Corporation Street from the train station.

Concrete paving within the bus running lanes to Church
Lane has failed, resulting in an undulating surface.

Yorkstone paving is used within the church grounds, an
appropriate material for the setting of the Grade | listed

building. Though some areas are worn and steps to St Mary's

Gate require some attention.

Rykneld Square is dominated by concrete block paving, and
does not establish a suitable approach to the church, and
fails to establish an attractive environment within which to

dwell.

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

- Concrete Paving

Red Line Boundary

Develop a palette of materials fit for purpose for both
use and location.

Create a suitable setting to the Church.
Create a welcoming arrival from the train station.

Seek to reduce large expanses of paving.

EMF--_
Sy

BROAD

ST MARY'S GATE

BURLINGTON STREEZ

1 |

CHURGCH LANE

HERRINGBONE CONCRETE PAVERS AT HERRINGBONE CONCRETE PAVERS AND TAR-

HERRINGBONE CONCRETE PAVERS ON CIRCULATION YORKSTONE SLABS AT ST MARY YORKSTONE STEPS AT ST MARY AND ALL
MAC ON CORPORATION STREET

BURLINGTON STREET

AND ALL SAINTS CHURCH SAINTS CHURCH RYKNELD SQUARE

PAGE 25



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.11 Furniture Typology Analysis - Market Square

Furnishings take on a traditional, historic
style within Chesterfield's Market Quarter.

9¢ abed

Although there is a wide array of furniture types within the
town centre, the market study area furniture has a more
limited and traditional palette consisting of black metal with
gold detailing.

Furniture within this area comprises of bins, bollards, traffic
signage columns, information signs and way-finding posts,
hanging basket planters, and benches. In many instances
this is creating a cluttered aesthetic to the street.

Although seating provision is limited, there is a mix of those
with backrests and without, meeting accessibility needs
and provision for all. A wider variety of seating and dwell
provision would be a positive addition to encourage a
greater use of the area by a wider proportion of the public.

Chesterfield Market has a long and interesting history, as
explored earlier in the document, which could be conveyed
in the future furniture palette.

Building upon the existing range of furniture and hard
materials, future items should work with the traditional
styling and nature of the space, and be of a limited palette,
perhaps with a contemporary twist. This could set the
benchmark for the town centre creating a clear arrival and
sense of place.

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

Rationalise furniture positioning to minimise street
clutter whilst providing even distribution.

Consider areas where dwell is being encouraged and
provide the street furniture to support this.

Potential introduction of more contemporary
furniture types.

PAGE 26

. e | |— | || B
1 _I_ N | II II ..'_-_-_.\.. | ..I I"h_
e | | i
|- | | | | ] !
L == 7| |
R IRESMITGAIE 1 I
— | “\M
B ==
: - : | III = “‘»x
4 : 'I 1 e e
! | = B2
| T | LB
' % i 3 _._EE-—'—lj% : = - & =
s ; | [ s PR U= s { ]
5 E |_ — ié l. II E | I| &
g ‘__'ﬁ: | : 2 | | i
)] % =l 1 | I
G e |} | bl 1
5

:
—___oll_oo

[ICH STREET

E9vd LEDRIVI

 WEST BARS

] S

"-l-‘-l-l-"'--|_ |

@R SRl

KEY! I|I I'. (|

i 3 |
1 q o |
_o ijﬁhbtogrqus I

FURNITURE PHOTOGRAPH LOCATIONS PLAN



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

! Ii:-_r—.- —

|'|
ol LS

§M\TED AREAS OF RAISED PLANTING AND SEATING. DISUSED PHONE

CONSIDER DISTRIBUTION AND CLUSTERING OF SEATING
OXES COULD BE RECONSIDERED

SEATING TO WESTERN NEW SQUARE HAS NO FOCAL POINT. POSITIVE

FACADE LIGHTING REFLECTS STYLE OF FREE-STANDING y / Y
MIX OF BACKREST AND NON BACKREST PROVISION LIGHTING COLUMNS VIEWS OF HISTORICWATER PUMP HEAVILY OBSTRUCTED

e e

alis LEESON

SEVERAL VEHICLE RESTRICTION SIGNS BRANDED BINS IN TRADITIONAL STYLE LIMITED PLANTING; COULD BE IMPROVED AND EXPANDED UPON

PAGE 27



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3.12 Furniture Distribution Analysis - Market Square

Furniture distribution in places leads to a
cluttered feel obstructing key facades.

In places, furniture can lead to a cluttered approach obscuring
views of key routes and historic facades. The over supply

of permanent market stalls adds to this cluttered feel. A
rationalisation of market stalls is being considered which should
aim to frame views rather than obscure them.

A more open arrangement would still provide market and event
functionality, with greater flexibility of use, as well as celebrating
the historic setting of the square.

X

b

LA
| CHESTEY § 't
By addressing the key views and understanding the relationship o4
between buildings, public realm and market uses, street

furniture can be more appropriately positioned.

'

DISUSED PHONE BOX BLOCKS VIEW OF NEW SQUARE AND MARKET STALLS SCREEN HISTORIC FACADE. BOLLARDS CREATE THE DIVIDE BETWEEN THE MARKET STALLS SCREEN WESTERN FACADE
HIGHWAY AND SEATING AREAS

g€ abed
I

KEY
== == Historic Facade to be celebrated

| Market Stalls screening historic fagades/key routes

| Furniture badly aligned/blocking key view/cluttering the street

MARKET STALLS SCREEN WATER PUMP MARKET STALLS SCREEN HISTORIC FACADE AND BADLY ALIGNED FURNITURE INCREASES DISCONNECT

PAGE 28



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.13 Furniture Typology Analysis - Rykneld Square, Church and Corporation Street

Furnishings continue the heritage
theme but can become cluttering.

6E abed

The heritage style street furniture extends into Rykneld
Square and the church grounds.

Furniture within Rykneld Square is located to the edges of
the space looking inwards over the expanse of block paving.
Whilst the seating is regularly distributed there are pockets
where they are supplemented by other furniture types,
creating a cluttered and somewhat confusing arrangement.

Bollards proliferate the edge, with the bus route creating
physical separation and establishing an uneasy edge to the
square.

The church grounds include clusters of seating and bins,
here the benches are timber creating a softer, more
gardenesque aesthetic. Seating areas are focused to the
edges of the main routes to the front of the church.

Corporation Street offers just a single seating opportunity
towards the bottom of the road. The rest of the street is
littered with metal bollards, guarding, and railings to control
vehicular movements and protect pedestrians. A converted
phone box currently houses a cash machine positioned to
the top of the street, adjacent to the row of bars and food
outlets.

ST MARY'S GATE

e
=
BURLINETON STRED)
|
DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:
+ Rationalise furniture positioning to minimise street
clutter whilst providing even distribution. —
CRURGCH LANE |

Consider areas where dwell is being encouraged and
provide the street furniture to support this.

Reduce the need for protection measures on KEY N N-.-"'" | i
Corporation Street. e Furniture Photograph Locations "@ | [ = !

/-

PAGE 29



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

3 ::‘*:i. =TT
il

HISTORIC LIGHTING AT ST MARY'S AND ALL SAINTS MEN A ‘ \ SEVERAL VEHICLE RESTRICTION SIGNS
CHURCH ENTRANCE

BOLLARDS PROTECTING RYKNELD SQUARE FROM VEHICLES

4| "'::;‘:ﬁ;p 53

HISTORIC STYLE LIGHTING IN ST MARY AND ALL SAINTS PROTECTION RAILING OUTSIDE THEATRE VEHICLE RESTRICTION SIGNS & RAILINGS OUTSIDE THEATRE BENCH FACING TREE ON CORPORATION STREET
CHURCH FOOTPATH

PAGE 30




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

3.14 Furniture Distribution Analysis - Rykneld Square to Corporation Street

Furniture distribution detracts from
heritage views and quality of approach.

The over proliferation of street furniture to the edge of Rykneld
Square has a negative impact on the church approach, this is
exacerbated by streetside congregation of commercial bins. As
the most popular tourist attraction in Chesterfield, the church
should have a more appropriate and respectful setting.

Rykneld Square is defined by furniture, pushed to the edges this
creates boundary lines with little offered to the centre of the
square and a poor experience for those choosing to rest in the

_Boace

&ehicular control measures to St Mary's Gate and Corporation
®ireet detract from the adjacent heritage buildings and features,
ﬁ{hilst reducing connectivity to the church.

MAIN APPROACH TO THE CHURCH IS FULL OF STREET CLUTTER AND BINS POORLY POSITIONED BINS DETRACT FROM THE CHURCH APPROACH

LGENTHRAL cans

8 Fih—eod

KEY

== == Historic Facade to be celebrated

[ Furniture badly aligned/blocking key view/cluttering the street

ROADSIDE RAILINGS. LIGHTING AND POORLY PLACED SIGNAGE HIDES THE STREET CLUTTER DETRACTS VIEWS AWAY FROM THE HERITAGE BUILDING AND LIGHTING
CHURCH ENTRANCE AND VIEWS OF THE MEMORIAL

PAGE 31



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

2y abed

PAGE 32

'OPPORTUNITIES AND CONSTRAINTS

oo,




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

4.1 Opportunities and Challenges- Market and New Squares

Chesterfield's market and surrounding area benefits from a network of

pedestrianised streets with several opportunities for improvement.

OPPORTUNITIES

CHALLENGES

The market stalls are both a great benefit and challenge. During market days the town

centre has avibrancy and thatis lost on a non market or smaller market day. The

permanent structures prevent permeability within the market squares and attracts

anti social behaviour. Options to reconfigure the market stalls, and the balance of

permanent versus temporary, should also consider movement routes, permeability, and
—pthe potential to establish flexible spaces to diversify the activities offered.

Atown centre assessment has suggested that the main market and retail areas should
be protected from the threat of a vehicle borne attack, in particular during busy market
and event days. However, vehicles cannot be excluded form the town centre as market
vehicles, servicing and emergency access must be maintained. A strategy for the
management of vehicles and controlling access should be developed that considers a
range of measures from bollards, to temporary barriers, and impact rated planters.

gThe refurbishment of the town squares provides a unique opportunity to enliven and

® reinvigorate Chesterfield which, combined with a reconfigured market provision, has

oogreat potential to drive up footfall, encourage visitors, and act as a catalyst for wider
investment and regeneration.

The existing market stall arrangements create hidden areas which are attracting anti-
social behaviours, reconfiguration of the market stalls should increase both visual and
physical connectivity.

The site is easily accessible via train, car and bus, and there are taxi pick up and drop off
and accessible parking bays, within the site boundary, to the northern side of the Market
Hall. These should be retained within the public realm proposals.

The site falls from the north to south in both squares. Although this may be a constraint,
there is also an opportunity to utilise the level change to emphasise key views, or locally
manipulate the levels to create seating edges and flatter spaces.

There are several mature trees in good condition in the study area which add valuable
greening and biodiversity to a predominantly hard space. There is an opportunity to
increase street trees, where appropriate, alongside lower level planting. This could also
consider sustainable urban drainage principles.

There is a network of underground utilities across the site which will dictate the
placement of any future trees. Root barriers can help here, as where a proposed tree is
close to existing utilities these can be used to protect them from root damage. Proposals
should aim to minimise impacts on existing below ground utilities.

There is a general lack of play within the town centre, presenting a clear opportunity to
improve town centre activities and encourage families into the area.

The existing uneven, cobbled surfacing has been identified as a significant barrier to
movement around the town centre. However, this does add to the character of the
squares and options for their re-use should be explored. A strategy for the re-use of
existing materials should be developed alongside options for new materials.

Opportunities for green travel options, in particular cycling, are currently under
provided. Public realm proposals should consider key movement routes and identify
areas where cycle parking can be included.

The below ground toilets in New Square will present a challenge in regards to location
of tree pits and relocation of underground services and lighting ducting.

Existing seating provision is well used but arrangements can feel cluttered and
positioning is often to the edges of spaces. A site wide furniture strategy should be
developed to ensure that the whole town centre has a coherent furniture and way
finding palette.

The existing surfacing relates to the history of the town and therefore should be
retained/reworked into any future proposals where possible. The existing builds ups,
stone quality, and area will directly affect how this can be incorporated.

PAGE 33



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

4.2 Opportunities and Challenges - Rykneld Square and St Mary and All Saints Church

Rykneld Square and the church grounds present opportunities to improve pedestrian

connectivity and develop reinvigorated spaces to dwell.

OPPORTUNITIES

CHALLENGES

Rykneld Square is a dedicated piece of public space that includes seating, established
street trees, gentle site levels and an events space though it is currently falling below
expectations. There are opportunities to build upon these positive existing features and
enhance the use of the square for locals and visitors whilst providing an appropriate
introduction to the adjacent church grounds and Grade | listed building.

There are several vehicular routes within close proximity which disrupt pedestrian
movement, create a lack of safety and increase noise pollution. The bus route adjacent
to Rykneld Square on Church Way creates a barrier to pedestrian movement and has
caused the block paved surface to fail. Opportunities should be explored to reduce

the impact of vehicles and the possible re-routing of the bus route. Discussions with
Derbyshire Highways Authority and the bus companies should be undertaken to discuss
possible solutions.

The site is easily accessible via car due to the ample parking and drop-offin the area,
bus routes and proximity to the train station. The site is a key junction for pedestrian
movement through the town from north to south through Rykneld Square, or east to
west from the train station to the markets. These primary routes should be retained and
enhanced.

Anti-social behaviour is a significant issue across the site, including within the Church
grounds, due to a lack of adequate lighting, a prevalent night-time economy and low
levels of natural surveillance. The development of lighting and CCTV strategies and
improved public realm could increase natural surveillance and civic pride thus driving
down anti-social behaviour.

There are many established trees within the church ground which also feature one of the
few open lawned spaces in the town centre, proving popular in summer time. Rykneld
Square presents an opportunity to expand upon these green elements for the public’s
enjoyment and to increase biodiversity and sustainability in the area.

There are underground utilities running throughout the site which will impact on the
location of proposed new trees and structures. Root barriers can be used where new
trees are placed to prevent damage to existing utilities. Where at all possible existing
utilities should be retained in their current alignments.

While the site features street trees and there is available lawn space in the church’s

grounds there is a lack of diversity in vegetation which reduces the ability for birds to

forage for food and insects to pollinate. This diversity can improved through a softworks
_Ustrategy aiming to increase biodiversity and variety through a mix of species.

QD

Poorly located bin storage across the site blocks key views, increases the vermin
population and reduces civic pride in the town centre - particularly in Rykneld Square.

A robust waste strategy will need to be implemented to ensure that the public realm and
streets are as free of overflowing and inappropriately placed bins as possible.

L(%Throughout the site there is seating which provides opportunity to rest and socialise,
Ihowever much of the seating is poorly located or in disrepair. A site wide furniture
'bstrategy for the whole town centre will create a coherent and appropriate palette.

Archaeological remains have been recorded within Rykneld Square. The full impact
that this may have on the public realm proposals are unknown at this stage. Further
information on possible constraints will be required to inform the design. This also
presents a unique opportunity to convey the origins and heritage of Chesterfield within
the design.

The site features many attractive existing historical and cultural features throughout such
as historical lighting columns and details in railings. There is an opportunity to celebrate
and highlight these features through complimentary materials and furniture palettes.

PAGE 34



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

4.3 Opportunities and Challenges - Corporation Street

Corporation Street has great potential to provide a warm welcome to visitors and

provide a high quality environment for existing uses.

OPPORTUNITIES

CHALLENGES

The Stephenson Memorial Hall will be undergoing a significant refurbishment, including
adjustments to the arrival experience. This is a very imposing building which should be
enhanced and supported by the public realm improvements to ensure that the theatre
experience is positive. This includes consideration around the congregation of people

in the street pre- and post-performance and the management of coach drop-off and
collection.

There is a fundamental challenge in balancing the needs of the theatre and its visitors and
the predominantly late night food and beverage outlets. The street design should aim to
improve the public realm environment for both street functions.

Corporation Street has potential to become a key destination within Chesterfield.
Q Existing architecture and feature heritage lighting hint at the area's potential. The street
%designs should aim to enhance the existing qualities and build upon the traditional,
NVictorian aesthetic in a contemporary manner.

Anti-social behavior at closing time can make the street feel unsafe and leads to street litter.
Proposals should consider an improved lighting and CCTV scheme together with providing
widened pavements to reduce conflict between pedestrians and vehicles.

o1
The arrival experience from Chesterfield train station is poor, the public realm

regeneration of Corporation Street should aim to create a legible, attractive and high
quality arrival.

The theatre stage door on Corporation Street is used by artists, theatre staff and deliveries.
Future proposals should consider access requirements including adequate delivery bays
and level thresholds.

Signage and wayfinding should be integral to the proposals and should provide clarity of
movement through the street to the wider town centre.

Accessible parking is very popular with theatergoers but the current provision is
inadequate. Consideration should be given to both accessible parking bays and accessible
drop-off and pick-up opportunities .

The public realm design should establish the identity of Chesterfield's cultural and
entertainment quarter. Opportunities for public art should be identified.

Underground utilities will influence the positioning of street trees and free standing
structures. Where possible existing utilities should not be disturbed. Root barriers can be
used where new trees are placed to prevent damage to below ground utilities.

The inclusion of increased street greening will improve the character of the street as well
as contributing towards the Council's sustainability and green ambitions. Opportunities
to increase town centre ecology and biodiversity should be explored.

Corporation street is currently dominated by vehicular infrastructure, the proposals should
aim to provide a balanced streetscape where pedestrians have greater opportunity to dwell
and circulate and vehicles are reduced or even removed. Early discussions with Derbyshire
Highways Authority will be required.

Taxi management is currently problematic at closing time. Consideration should be given
to improving the management and flow of drop-offs and pick-ups in the area. There is a
potential to develop thoughts around a shared facility with the theatre, as peak times of use
between the two functions are not the same.

PAGE 35



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

PRECEDENT STUDY. ANDY
’SCALE COMPARISOI\l

= A,

9t abed

PAGE 36



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

5.1 Market Square Scale Comparison - Old Market Square, Nottingham

Old Market Square in Nottingham is one of the
oldest public squares in the UK with an 800 year
history as a market place. At 11,500m2, it is the
second largest in Britain after London’s Trafalgar
Square.

KEY OBSERVATIONS:

The size of the market square is similar in size to Chesterfield.

Features on the square, water feature and planting, provide
interest on non-event or market days.

Large open space allows for markets and events to be held.

The Council building in Nottingham and the Market Hall in
Chesterfield both provide focal points to the space.

. v abed

Both Old Market Square and Chesterfield have markets at
the heart of their history and in the community. Nottingham
showcases how the space can be used as a place for markets
as well as being an attractive public square.

CHESTERFIELD MARKET SQUARE

NOTTINGHAM OLD MARKET SQUARE WITH WATER FEATURE, GREENED EDGE AND FLEXIBLE MARKET SQUARE NOTTINGHAM Q1 D MARKET SQUARE

PAGE 37



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

5.2 Church and Rykneld Square Scale Comparison - Blackburn Cathedral

Cathedral Gardens, within the grounds of
Blackburn Cathedral (Grade I), provides a
welcoming space where visitors can relax and
enjoy beingin a green space at the heart of the
town centre.

KEY OBSERVATIONS:

« The gardens address key movement routes, especially
with the adjacent public transport hubs, whilst creating an
intimate atmosphere and an appropriate approach to the
Cathedral.

« Balance of hard and soft materials ensures that the square is
durable yet not overwhelmed by large expanses of paving.

« Seatingareas are plentiful and evenly distributed. A flexible
space next to the cathedral is used for cafe overspill and
small events.

+ Soft landscape areas include a range of lower growing
shrubs, hedging, and statement trees improving the quality
of the external environment whilst improving biodiversity
and water management.

]

o - T

APPROACH TO THE CHURCH FROM RYKNELD SQUARE IS UNDERWHELMING CHURCH & RYKNELD SQUARE

= ' —b‘.}

-‘i P g I b,

! T i

=

R L o

e
e T -
| T —

PRIMARY PEDESTRIAN ROUTES ARE INCORPORATED INTO THE DESIGN FLEXIBLE SPACE SURROUNDED BY SEATING AND FLORAL GARDENS CATHEDRAL GARDENS: BLACKBURN CATHEDRAL

PAGE 38



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

5.3 Corporation Street Scale Comparison - Fishergate, Preston

The rebalancing of Fishergate has enlivened one
of Preston's primary retail and entertainment
streets whilst increasing street greening.

KEY OBSERVATIONS:

Reduction in the width of running lane has enabled greater
footpath widths and encourages pavement activation.

New street trees provide valuable urban greening and
biodiversity benefits.

The introduction of a variety of hard materials in the
carriageway calms the street and encourages drivers to
moderate their behaviour as they become more aware of
pedestrians.

61 abed

High quality materials improves the aesthetic of the street
and increases long term durability.

REBALANCED STREET WHERE VEHICULAR DOMINANCE IS REDUCED AND ACTIVE SPACE AND STREET GREENING INCREASED FISHERGATE PRESTON

PAGE 39



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

0S abed

PAGE 40

VISION AND CONCEPT DESIGN

)

o




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.1 Overall Vision Masterplan

The vision is to create an attractive and

heritage sensitive public realm that

supports Chesterfield as a destination

retail, recreation and heritage hub.

The design of the public realm has several underlying concepts

as depicted here. These have been translated into the
developing design that is illustrated over the following pages.

Site wide strategies are explained further towards the.end of this
chapter.

TG abed

Celebrating Identity

Celebrating the identity of Chesterfield through
enhancement of its market, church and cultural features.

Urban Greening & Sustainability

Planting street trees and adding greenery to the site to enhance
aesthetics and help mitigate the effects of climate change.

Social Dwell

Provide a variety of seating opportunities to suit a wide range of
users and encourage social dwell and relaxation.

Destination Events & Routes For Events

Design a landscape capable of hosting a wide array of attractive
events for community cohesion and enjoyment.

Active Edges

Design a public realm to encourage spill out, from surrounding
food and beverage establishments to activate the landscape.

Embrace Heritage

Chesterfield has had a recorded market since 1156 with the
current Market Hall dating to 1857; something to be celebrated
within any future design.

Encourage Play

Incorporate non prescriptive playful elements within the design
to encourage children and adults alike to play and interact.

Wayfinding

Build upon existing signage to create a legible network of spaces
and expand aesthetic design across Chesterfield.

Landmark Views

Maintain clear views to historic wayfinding landmarks such as,
Church of St Mary and All Saints, and Chesterfield Market Hall.

A Safe Space

Incorporate Hostile Vehicle Mitigation within the landscape
design to mitigate against potential terror threat.

PAGE 41



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.2 Proposed Character Areas

Several character areas, united in materiality and style, yet each with their own identity and functions make up the Town Centre Transformation project.

The Market Quarter consists of the two market squares and adjacent streets. This The water pump, a focus of social gathering for centuries, in Market Square should be Rykneld Square, the parish church, and Corporation Street mark a change in character
establishes the heart of the town, the centre point of the retail area, and focus of activity. celebrated rather than hidden from view. Market stalls positioning should consider sight from retail uses towards cultural and food and beverage/entertainment venues. The
Whilst containing a number of characters, this area should have a consistency of design lines which could be used to frame this historical asset whilst creating informal seating creation of an appropriate setting for the church is a primary design consideration which
approach to provide a legible and holistic environment within which markets and events and dwell space. requires Rykneld Square to be rethought as a fundamental element of the church's

can be held. wider context.

Corporation Street is Chesterfield's gateway for those arriving by train and contains
the town's theatre and museum. The existing arrival experience is poor, providing the
opportunity to create a high quality welcome to Chesterfield's visitors.

KEY '|-I 4 &
—_— — — ”~
I_- New Square 1L ; . :;’ -, i 5 f
I E Market Square i r g |
I Pocket Square The Market Quarter o ¥
Corporation

| g ich Street | Street

Low Pavement
LI VT gl
I Burlington Street

I Rykneld Square

I St Mary and All Saints Church # ‘T.'L L% { q o
I Corporation Street i
9-? ' "=, Packers Row :
Q
- = !
m L
3 [
| ol B ‘ i 4 i
I s . e [ — : i b
’ " T & | 1 E i 2 B i o ]
i . F - St Mary and Rl
= All Saints L 1 4
! Church- 4 . g
f ~ T ~
West Bars ' w '
3B o "L
: e 2’ | -?I
' e 4 . y
ey J 'lr
le . O e R . RS S

PAGE 42



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.3 The Market Quarter - Proposed Spatial Arrangement

A sympathetic and heritage conscious approach,
consisting of three key spaces and working with
existing materials and historical narrative.

Chesterfield’s Market Square and New Square, at present,

both host a similar array of underused market stalls. The
redistribution of permanent and temporary stalls, focusing
permanent provision within Market Square, will enable New
Square and the pocket square to the south of the Market Hall to
become their own destination spaces.

Existing materials are high quality and reflect the history of the
—gpace, therefore rather than an unsustainable and expensive
moval and replacement, these materials can be reworked
nd reused. An injection of new stone will enliven the existing
Unaterials and redefine the focal areas, supplemented with
c%’arefully positioned tree planting and street furniture.

The site is predominately hard at present with a limited number
of mature trees. An injection of tree planting, largely in hard
surfacing, would aesthetically enhance the space, reduce the
impact of urban heat gain, encourage dwell, and improve
biodiversity.

The careful and even distribution of seating, together with

the encouragement of cafe culture, will increase activity and
encourage visitors to stop for a while. A rethink of furniture could
be combined with art and play, encouraging increased dwell
times, and creating a true destination space.

New Square; Market Square; High Street; Low Pavement and the
new pocket square to the south of the Market Hall are explored
in more depth within this chapter.

PAGE 43



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.4 The Market Quarter- Celebrating Identity

The driving concept is to embrace the existing
market and provide stall holders with a more
efficient and higher quality trading environment,
whilst improving the opportunities to diversify
the market offer and deliver an exciting events
calendar.

Chesterfield's market is an important asset for the town in terms
of both retail experience and history. The vision seeks to see it
retained and reinvigorated, with the new open space created
used to host a variety of temporary stalls interchangeable with
seasons, demand, and trends. In this way Chesterfield's market
experience can thrive into the future.

vS abed

KEY

Flexible open hard space allows for
temporary market stalls, drive on
facilities and events

Permanent stalls retained for day to
day traditional market use

PAGE 44

FLEXIBLE OPEN HARD SPACE ALLOWS FOR TEMPORARY STALLS AND
MARKET EVENTS

o -

d
-
-

%

1

]

TRADITIONAL MARKET TRADING CAN CONTINUE TO FLOURISH

7




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.5 The Market Quarter - Urban Greening and Sustainability

Avital part of the Town Centre Transformation
vision is that of urban greening, planting

street trees, and lower level shrubs to enhance
aesthetics and help mitigate the effects of climate
change.

There are several mature trees distributed across the site,
however, their influence is limited and there is scope for a much
greater area of canopy cover, supported by areas of ornamental
planting.

The existing trees to the western side of New Square add a real
epth to the area, and screen less advantageous facades whilst
@llowing clear views toward the Market Hall. The design sees this
anopy cover expanded upon to create a dappled urban 'grove'
Ovhere visitors can stop and rest on seating and playful furniture
elements below.

A second grove of trees is proposed to the southern side of the
Market Hall, creating a Pocket Park for relaxation beneath a
cooling tree canopy whilst also providing wind protection to the

market traders in Market Square. URBAN GREENING ENCOURAGES DWELL

Several new street trees are proposed across the site. Each
location has been thought through to relate to architecture,
uses, pedestrian flows, key views, and operational requirements
of the market. The future tree species must be carefully selected
so as to provide greatest resilience to climate change, provide
seasonal variation, and attractiveness as well as biodiversity.

WIEST BARS

KEY

Existing trees

. Proposed street trees

Potential for ornamental planting below trees

A GROVE OF DAPPLED CANOPIES CAN CREATE AN INVITING SEATING

PAGE 45



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.6 1 he Market Quarter - Social Dwell and Active Edges

Avariety of seating opportunities are suggested
to suit a wide range of users and encourage dwell
and relaxation.

By providing a variety of seating types and locations, all user
groups can be catered for and encouraged to use and enjoy
the space. In turn, this encouragement of dwell in the town
centre will allow users to recharge, and carry on exploring and
shopping, boosting the local economy.

BACKRESTS SHOULD BE INCORPORATED IN PLACES TO ENSURE ACTIVE EDGES NEED NOT JUST BE FOOD AND BEVERAGE UNITS, OTHER
COMFORT FOR ALL SHOPS CAN BE ENCOURAGED TO SPILL OUT INTO THE PUBLIC REALM

Active edges should be encouraged to
enliven the squares and streets, and attract
new visitors and establishments.

Active edges enliven town centres and attract new users and
businesses. Chesterfield’s town centre has the potential to
expand upon its current outdoor seating offer, both for food and
beverage units, and for passers by in general.

e
S

Uplifting the public realm and adding street trees will provide : . .
a more inviting backdrop for people wanting to dine and drink AN ARRAY OF BENCH LOCATIONS IN THE OPEN AND BELOW TREES TO MARKET STALLS ACTIVE EDGES FOR CUSTOMER INTERACTION PLAYFUL FURNITURE CAN ENCOURAGE DWELL, INTERACTION AND
within the area, and should encourage businesses to provide OFFERVARIETY (NFORMAL PLAY

outdoor seating.

Access and aesthetics are important and may need to be
Tgulated by the council to ensure key pedestrian and essential
Qehicular servicing routes are kept undisrupted. Furniture styles
®@d boundaries to seating areas, if any are proposed, should be
%ﬂall and in keeping with the wider landscape design.

As explored later in this chapter, branding is important for the
future of the market, and these future branding colours could be
conveyed over shop fronts and outdoor seating areas to create a
truly coherent public realm and destination space.

KEY

. Potential active edge

. Market Hall has the potential for fully active fagades
. Potential 'playful' furniture element

Seating locations

Al

PAGE 46



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.7 The Market Quarter - Destination Events

The aspiration is to design a public realm
capable of hosting a wide array of attractive
events for community cohesion and enjoyment,
driving increased footfall to the town centre.

With the removal of permanent market stalls from New Square,
the area becomes a prime space for temporary events such as,
music performances, travelling art exhibitions, children’s events,
an outdoor cinema, and community gatherings.

Partial removal of permanent stalls within the main Market

Square would offer this space up to host seasonal temporary
Warkets such as, Christmas, makers, specialist food, vintage,
‘%ric—a—brac, and more.

D
Uhis flexible open area adjacent to the main Market Hall could

~so provide valuable space for temporary seating in summer
such as, deckchairs and beanbags, attracting a variety of users
and encouraging people to stay longer in the town centre,
further boosting the local economy.

SMALL MUSIC EVENTS COULD BE HELD IN NEW SQUARE DAYTIME CHILDREN’S EVENTS COULD LIVEN UP NEW SQUARE SEASONAL AND MAKERS MARKETS COULD BE HELD ACROSS BOTH
SQUARES

KEY

New Square - music and children’s events as
well as temporary installations and markets

Market Square - flexible market space for
seasonal and specialist stalls and temporary
seating

PAGE 47



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.8 Market Square Proposals

Ahistorical, open, hard square and functioning market space,
given a more flexible and permeable layout.

PAGE 48

§ '.-' I-'.r' ﬁll.'ﬂ "
Ll .'I-l.'l 1

Line of new seating provision frames the square and offers dwell
space. Also offering an element of vehicle protection combined
with formalised Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM) protection
(ongoing)

Servicing, maintenance and emergency access route maintained
along the front of the Market Hall via clear open flush hard space
and drop bollards that meet HVM requirements (ongoing).

Views to the town water pump are opened up and a new area of
seating established away from key pedestrian routes.

New flexible central space for market and event use surrounded
by reconfigured market stalls. Bespoke stone paving slabs inlaid
with artwork narrating Chesterfield's heritage. Including pop-up
power supplies as needed

"Welcome mat' to the Market Hall entrance with new stone
paving in warm buff tones.

Lifted and relaid Yorkstone flags paving band links into Church
Lane pedestrianised historic shopping street.

New permanent market stalls with colourful canopies arranged
above relaid Yorkstone setts (refer to chapter 7 for more
information).

Fringe of existing reused Yorkstone slabs frame the Market
Square and flows north and south to cross Low Pavement and
High Street.

Benches frame the square and offer dwell space and an
additional line of vehicle segregation.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.9 Market Square Precedents

A place for day to day markets and
seasonal events fringed by trees and
seating where history is celebrated.

=

D

.o [N - SEETETEEEEET

.

THE WATER FOUNTAIN SHOULD BE FRAMED AND CELEBRATED PROVISION OF SEATING WILL ENCOURAGE DWELL REUSE OF EXISTING MATERIALS ADDS CHARACTER AND TEXTURE
PAGE 49



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.10 Market Square Activation

Market Square has the potential to host a range of events throughout the year from changing
temporary market stalls to a food market and a 'Chesterfield by the Sea' event. In order to
fully maximise the flexibility of the space suitable utility provisions will need to be installed.

Temporary Market Stalls

«  Temporary market stalls in the middle of the square provide the possibility for a
variety of different pop up events such as vintage clothing fairs.

« Suitable space is needed for circulation around the temporary market stalls.

«  Power provision should be considered and if this will be provided in the form of pop-
up power, or brought on generators.

« Suitable access needs to be considered for the setup and installation of the stalls.

PAGE 50

Temporary Marquee

Atemporary marquee in the middle of the square with circulation routes in and out
will provide the opportunity for pop-up vendors to sell at the market.

Circulation should be considered through and around the temporary marquee.

Power should be considered and if this will be provided in the form of pop-up power
or brought on generators.

Suitable access needs to be considered for the setup and installation of the
marquee.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.11 Market Square Activation

Food Market Chesterfield by the Sea

«  Afood market event with a variety of mobile food vendors could take place in the .
middle of the square.

«  The provision of additional pop up seating would need to be considered for a food
market in order to accommodate additional diners. .

« Additional waste disposal must would be needed in order to accommodate visitors
as well as food vendors.

A seasonal beach themed activity could take place in the middle of the square
including a large artificial beach. This would attract a variety of audiences from
families in the daytime and summer holidays.

Access for potential large vehicles needs to be considered to allow for the delivery of
the sand. Access routes should also be considered for the delivery of additional play
equipment.

The provision of additional temporary seating needs to be considered in the form of
deck chairs for the beach area.

PAGE 51



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.12 New Square Proposals

Aflexible events space, emerging from under a canopy of new and old
trees with a contemporary seating and playful sculptural form.

.....J.a....

e, L - Emsmmmn

L T

'.-.' ! -...I'u.:n'—,'l .-%‘ 4 “—I
_ . TT‘: _I.fr'ﬁf"qﬁ'g :

“

]

"'1 EE NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN EENEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

U 3 o s T T
L] - m f am ammns
o ol Fo—

TTLLLLL L EEsEEEEEEEEEn 3 LYY mmmnn

PAGE 52

Existing trees retained and given more breathing room

for longevity via the removal of paving to their base, and
introduction of low maintenance ornamental planting beds with
plentiful seating opportunities.

Static and drop Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM) bollard line,
integrated with trees and street furniture (Ongoing: refer to
chapter eight for more information).

Servicing, maintenance and emergency access route maintained
along the front of the Market Hall via clear open flush hard
space, and drop bollards that meet HVM requirements.

Reused Yorkstone paving and setts establish a surround to the
new square and define the extents of the market.

Temporary market stalls and flexible space for events.

'Welcome mat' to the Market Hall entrance with feature paving
inspired by tiling within the Assembly Rooms.

Proposed trees create a western grove.

Potential playful seating element rises and falls to become a
slide, sun lounger, bench and table. As well as acting as a play
and seating element, the winding bench will also act as an
additional line of HVYM for the square and could also have dates
and information relating to Chesterfield’s history.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.13 New Square Precedents

A playful, green, attractive and modern
square, capable of hosting events.

INSPIRATINO FOR PAVING COULD BE TAKEN FROM THE INTERIOR OF THE PLAY, ART AND SEATING COULD BE COMBINED
MARKET HALL

PLAY, ART AND SEATING COULD BE COMBINED IN A SINGULAR TWISTING
A FLEXIBLE SPACE FOR INFORMAL SEATING AND EVENTS INTEGRATED SEATING WITHIN PLANTING FORM AROUND TREES FEATURE SEATING WITHIN PLANTING OFFERS A CALMER ENVIRONMENT

PAGE 53



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.14 New Square Activation

New Square has the potential to host a range of events throughout the year from the
annual Christmas lights switch on to cinema nights and music events. In order to fully
maximise the flexibility of the space suitable utility provisions will need to be installed.

Cinema night Big Wheel and fair
Seated event within the square where seasonal films can be enjoyed supported by a « Dueto the size constraints, and limitations on weight loading to the south of
food and beverage offer the square, any feature wheel is likely to be located to the northern boundary.

Installation of surface materials should consider the potential weight and installation

Placement of the screen should consider topography, weight loadings to the disused )
requirements.

below ground toilet block and screen type (free standing v within a vehicle)
Utility provisions should consider likely requirements of this and any possible

Power provisions within the square should meet the needs of this type of event and ) T
supporting activities.

WiFi coverage maximised in order to facilitate food stall trading

The need for stand alone generators should be minimised

PAGE 54



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.15 New Square Activation

@ F @ w @ BFEEE

&0 R B B &R WP

L
*
-
L]
=
L]
]
1]
'

Christmas Lights switch-on

Music Event
«  Placement of a stage in front of the Market Hall should consider weight loadings if

« Awider variety of music events could be provided within New Square from a
medium sized stage event to more intimate street music. Such events could be located close to below ground constraints.

supported by a food and beverage offer

Potential stage locations should be considered as the design develops to ensure
suitable power provision is established without the need for generators .

The square is likely to accommodate significant standing numbers. The placement
of street furniture should not obstruct such an event.

Utility provisions should consider likely requirements of this and any possible

«  WiFi coverage maximised in order to facilitate food stall trading supporting activities.

PAGE 55



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.16 Low Pavement

Low Pavement will create an attractive and welcoming
gateway into the town centre from West Bars.

===+ Drop and static bollards will act as the western gateway for
Chesterfield’s central Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM) strategy.

Subject to ongoing discussions around HVM provision

===+ The two existing silver birch trees will be retained and new
raised planter edges constructed around their base to
retain the raised base trunk level as per existing. Their soil
volume will be increased and ornamental planting added
to create a green gateway into New Square.

PAGE 56

===« Flush kerb retained in existing position with smaller Yorkstone setts to the
carriageway as per existing. Setts lifted, cleaned and re-laid and current
bands of light grey granite removed.

«====: Southern kerb is currently a trip hazard as it is slightly
raised in places. The levels will be smoothed out so the
entire area is flush.

====e 'Welcome mat' to the Market Hall
entrance with new stone setts in warm
buff tones. Crosses Low Pavement to
unite with the entrance to the covered
shopping precinct.

Fringe of existing reused Yorkstone slabs frame the
Market Hall and flows north and south to cross Low
Pavement and High Street.

====u: Yorkstone flag paved pathway that runs central to the
market stall areas will cross Low Pavement and link
up to the entrance to the covered shopping precinct.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.17 High Street Plan

Existing yorkstone paving and setts will be lifted, cleaned and relaid to create a
clean new yet historic narrative with new trees and planting. Vehicular control
measures will be formalised to provide added safety to town centre visitors.

Drop bollards allow for protection from hostile vehicles and seassaass [LLLEY ‘Welcome mat' to the Market Hall entrance [LLLEY Fringe of Yorkstone flags line the facade and cross the flush street as per
allow for servicing along the length of the high street. The : : with new stone setts in warm buff tones. the paved fringe to the Market Hall. Flush kerb retained in existing position
seating steps and proposed trees complete the HVM line. : : : with smaller Yorkstone setts to the carriageway as per existing. Setts lifted,
.&ubject to ongoing discussions around HVM provision : . o : cleaned and re-laid.
- - New trees planned to either end of servicing,
«Q accessible and taxi pick up and drop off
® bays to the northern side of the Market Hall.
3 Locations allowed by gnderground Servicine. sreess Proposed seating frames the square and provides a buffer between
Trees protected by solid stone double height 3 : the high street and market encouraging dwell
kerb and form part of HVM strategy (ongoing). = & ene :

PAGE 57



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.18 Streetscene Precedents

Balanced streets punctuated with
street trees leading pedestrians from
New Square to Market Square.

PAVING PATTERN DEFINES SERVICE VEHICLE CARRIAGEWAY RATHER
THAN RAISED KERBS

— et e O e e R

e — ST o

SEATING BENEATH TREES WITH PLANTING TO THE LOW PAVEMENT
POCKET SQUARE

; - T —— .
C oy — ‘1' ﬁ -

AN ATTRACTIVE PUBLIC REALM WILL ENCOURAGE STREET ACTIVATION

o gl '. -:'

= —
e

-

STREET TREES CAN ENCOURAGE DWELL ON ADJACENT SEATING

PAGE 58



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.19 Pocket Square

A space for dwell and relaxation beneath a dappled
tree canopy in the bustling heart of Chesterfield.

New tree set within permeable self binding gravel at the tip of
Pocket Square.

‘Welcome mat' to the Market Hall entrance with new granite
setts in warm buff tones. Crosses Low Pavement to unite with
the entrance to the covered shopping precinct.

Three metre wide band of Yorkstone flags allow for south facing
spill out from the Market Hall.

Proposed trees within ornamental planting bed with new
raised kerb surround. Picks up on geometry of surrounding
architecture and provides a weather buffer to the market traders

Proposed trees and benches within self binding gravel area, set
between flush kerb to Low Pavement, and Yorkstone fringe to
the Market Hall.

Fringe of existing reused Yorkstone slabs frame the Market Hall
and flows north and south to cross Low Pavement and High
Street.

PAGE 59



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.20 Pocket Square Precedents

The proposed trees will be set within permeable
self binding gravel and paving with a range of
seating opportunities and spill out space.

SELF BINDING GRAVEL COULD CREATE A FEATURE OF THE GROUND-PLANE AND ALLOW FOR TREE
PLANTING

FEATURE SEATING BENEATH A DAPPLED TREE CANOPY A MIX OF SEATING TYPES TO APPEAL TO ALL USER GROUPS A FLEXIBLE SPACE TO ALLOW FOR SPILL OUT FROM THE MARKET HALL

PAGE 60



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.21 Burlington Street

Existing concrete paving will be replaced with a more heritage palette of
materials in keeping with the adjacent civic spaces . Vehicular control measures
will be formalised to provide added safety to town centre visitors.

T/ 9bed

Yorkstone flags line the street on both sides, with smaller setts to the ,..vu.. e
carriageway. Flush kerbs indicate the vehicular route for deliveries
and emergency access.

Planting to the base of the existing tree along the
street with an adjacent additional tree.

Packers Row public realm improvements to be ra=ssssssssssasnunnns : :===+ New trees added to the widened

: : footpath areas of the street along
with improved seating and dwell
areas. Potential to also include
smaller play elements

delivered in Spring 2022

Yorkstone paving in warm buff tones with bond running
opposite to adjacent Yorkstone paving flags to highlight
the linking retail street .

e Drop bollards allow for protection from hostile vehicles and
allow for servicing along the length of the street. Subject to
ongoing discussions around HVM provision

PAGE 61



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.22 Burlington Street Precedents

A balanced street punctuated with street
trees leading pedestrians from the Market
Quarter to Rykneld Square and beyond

f&*-'ﬁ i_s%egl o h,.,- h\i

CLUTTER FREE PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

POTENTIAL FOR SEATING BETWEEN STREET TREES ARTWORK OPPORTUNITIES IN STREET FURNITURE CAR FREE SPACE ALLOWING SPILL OUT AND DWELL

PAGE 62



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.23 Church and Rykneld Square - Proposed Spatial Arrangement

Drawing upon past uses, Rykneld Square has
been redesigned to provide the church with an
appropriate arrival experience.

Currently Rykneld Square is under used and undervalued,
presenting a sea of block paving and clusters of street furniture.
The processional entrances into the church grounds are blighted
by bins and an uninspiring environment.

Movement from Burlington Street is segregated by the Church

Way bus route and retail service access, the surface of which is

failing under the sustained heavy vehicle use. This establishes

strong barrier to movement, combined with associated noise

Qnd air pollution. The proposals recommend the partial closure
@f Church Way and the re-routing of associated bus routes. Thus,
~¢leasing increased space to establish a new garden area within
CJF@kaneld Square.

This envisioned space aims to improve connectivity with the
church by encouraging pedestrians to move through the square
to the main church entrance. Due to the existing clutter in the
square this primary entrance is not visually dominant, and most
pedestrians use secondary entrances. By re-enforcing the main
entrance, pedestrians will need to walk through the gardens and
away from service areas.

The church grounds themselves will have a much-improved
interface with the square. It is envisaged that the church
environment will be predominantly improved though the
introduction of a renewed lighting scheme, tree works, and
planting. Footpath routes around the church, particularly onto
St Mary’s Gate, need improvements to improve both legibility
and access.

PAGE 63



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.24 Church and Rykneld Square Vision - Urban Greening and Sustainability

The Church grounds, together with the creation
of a new urban garden in Rykneld Square,
provide a unique opportunity to improve
biodiversity within the town centre.

The church grounds currently present the largest area of
greening within the town centre and contains a number of
mature evergreen and deciduous trees. However, it is encircled
by highway infrastructure, tightly constructed buildings, and
large expanses of hard surfacing creating a green ‘island’. Up
until recent times, Rykneld Square was a green space, seen as
an extension of the church grounds, and at one time an alpine
garden. The proposals for the square therefore aim to return the
current hard space back to a verdant and calming garden where
it can complement the church environment.

This enlarged area of green space enables opportunities to:

+ Increase biodiversity thorough the implementation of a
range of species and planting types.

« Introduce planting from ground level up to canopy level
creating a layering effect.

« Provide enclosed lawn areas where visitors can dwell on a
warm summers day.

Include design elements designed to encourage utilisation

by birds, mammals and insects.
'

i MNP, [ ey

e . ES
e e
.f'-"i‘l.":'i

) abed

Introduce principles of sustainable urban drainage
(SuDS) through the use of semi-permeable materials and =
encouraging drainage via the soil.

L)
T
(!

+ Reusereclaimed materials provide an opportunity to include
local community groups in their long term maintenance.

PAGE 64

—_— T L e

e i

-




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.25 Church and Rykneld Square Vision - Social Dwell

The enlarged area of green public realm will
enable the calming atmosphere of the church
grounds to extend into Rykneld Square, thus
presenting increased opportunities to enjoy time
in the outdoors.

LEPE L i B

The church grounds already contain several seats and benches
within its main arrival area to the front of the church facing
south. Their associated tearooms are within an adjacent
building creating opportunities to offer outdoor dining within
the grounds on sunny days. Rykneld Square will increase the
—gpportunity to dwell through the inclusion of a variety of seating
ptions and lawned areas. Unlike the church grounds, seating
Mere will be within an enclosed and lush environment away from
ain pedestrian routes. Seating orientation considers key views
and associations with the church interface.

et i R ..

i
i
|

PAGE 65



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.26 Rykneld Square

A redesigned Rykneld Square will provide attractive gardens within the
town centre and a welcoming approach to the Grade | Parish Church.

PAGE 66

Signage and totems to aid wayfinding.

Vehicle drop-off area reduced and pedestrian movement
prioritised to create an arrival space for church events.

Linear hedges to enhance insect and bird foraging.

Quiet dwell space surrounded by planting.

Planting beds with species tolerant of wet and dry conditions to
manage local climate changes.

Historical references in central paved space to demonstrate local
character and identity.

Berry and flower bearing trees to provide foraging opportunities
for wildlife.

Bespoke seating in a central dwell space to act as focal meeting
pointin the garden setting.

Central lawn space for play and lounging in good weather.

High quality, comfortable and accessible seating to provide
dwell opportunists.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.27 Rykneld Square Precedents

e

N |

_aii e

PAGE 67



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.28 St. Mary and All Saints Church

Improvements to the church environments will re-enforce the character
of the churchyard and create safer and more attractive routes.

Route to the memorial improved to allow access and ceremonial
events.

Bespoke seating for meeting and social dwell.

Improved lighting throughout the area to reduce antisocial
behaviour and illuminate historical features.

Existing lawns improved and enhanced with seasonal bulbs to
provide springtime colour and pollinator foraging opportunities.

Primary entrance enhanced.

PAGE 68



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.29 St. Mary and All Saints Church

PAGE 69



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.30 Corporation Street Option 1 - reduction to a one-way street

Rebalancing the street will place greater emphasis on the
pedestrian experience and support the adjacent uses.

Signage/totem to improve wayfinding and act as a gateway
feature.

Attractive arrival space from the station.

Note: Aspirations for a new bridge link from the station may
impact on the design and functional requirements of this space

e ann sk g annnnnnsnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnanas |1CrE3ASE Street greening,

sessmanssssanmnssnnnnnnnnnns  Streetincreased to one way route.

i . ‘,%J'- -'G (-.-----I---.J"--..-.--..-..--..-..-..--.--.--..-..-..--.--..-..-..--.--..-.u-.-.- |mpro\/ed dropoﬁand de[i\/erybayg.
f

iy

(...................................................... Widened footpaths to improve pedestrian movement and on
street activity.

08 abed

e m e m R MR m IR o MR R MM MR mmmERRREEEEL . .. P2ving featuring local and cultural references.

-ﬂ'ﬁéﬂ-:-"'hl.}%'

PR,
b
i

g
h Y

"}Em:ﬁ :

POTENTIAL FEATURE PAVING INSPIRED BY THE STAINED GLASS WINDOWS WITHIN STEPHENSON MEMORIAL HALL

PAGE 70



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.31 Corporation Street Option 2 - Partial Road Closure

Removing traffic from Corporation street enables the creation of a
new piece of gateway public realm and a warm welcome to visitors.

Drop off and delivery lay by.

Signage/totem to improve wayfinding and act as a gateway
feature.

Attractive arrival space from the station.

Note: Aspirations for a new bridge link from the station may
impact on the design and functional requirements of this space

Increase street greening.

Street closed to through traffic and pedestrianised.

Reconfigured delivery drop off and bays.

Paving featuring local and cultural references.

FEATURE PAVING DESIGN EXPLORATIONS

PAGE 71



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.32 Corporation Street Precedents

[T7] /]
irg Egg
L/ g'!-,' i

PAGE 72




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.33 Overall Vision - Embrace Heritage

Chesterfield has had a recorded market since
1156 with the current market hall dating
to 1857; something to be celebrated.

Chesterfield boasts a rich history with many listed buildings
and features which led to the granting of the Town Centre's
Conservation Status in 1976.

Within the market site itself there are several Grade |l listed
buildings along Low Pavement and the Market Hall. Some of the
historic traditionally styled lamps are also Grade Il listed.

The Water Pump which sits at the north west corner of Market
gquare is grade I1* listed, with inscriptions from 1776 and 1826.
his Town Pump has always been a key feature of Chesterfield
ed as a source of water for residents and cattle on market
Way, and featuring in many historical photographs of social
gatherings.

The Water Pump is currently largely hidden from view, screened
from the High Street and Market Hall by many of the permanent
market stalls and with no real respect given to its heritage. The
proposed design sees the pump celebrated as a key focal point,
at the heart of a stepped seating area with market stalls pushed
back to give it breathing space.

Chesterfield's Parish Church, St Mary and All Saints, is Grade |
listed and an iconic landmark, forming an important orientation
point and providing the climax to many long views through

the town centre. The wider church environment does not fully
celebrate the building or provide the appropriate welcome to

visitors, an important consideration for the towns leading tourist

attraction.

Archaeological excavations in Rykneld Square have revealed
the town's Roman and Anglo-Saxon origins though there is no
recognition of this within the square.

There are many ways the important heritage of the town can be
celebrated in the public realm design, through inlays in seating,
paving, and signage. Strategies that extend through the town
would provide a cohesive approach to heritage.

B s e

A HERITAGE PLINTH COULD BE INCORPORATED TO NARRATE
CHESTERFIELD’S PAST

KEY

‘ Potential to incorporate heritage into seating
. Historic Water Pump should be celebrated
. Paving could incorporate heritage details

DATES, TEXT AND IMAGERY CAN BE CUT INTO PAVING AND STEPS

METAL AND STONE INLAYS OFFER POTENTIAL FOR ATTRACTIVE SIGNAGE
IN SEATING AND STEPS

PAGE 73



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.34 Overall Vision - Encourage Play

Part of the town centre vision is to create
informal playful spaces that encourage children
and adults alike to play and interact.

The playful elements are not intended to be prescriptive play
as such, but more an iconic furniture element that incorporates
the potential for play whilst also providing a comfortable dwell
space for a wide variety of users.

New Square's western side is well suited to incorporate such an
element, below its existing tree canopy, with additional planting
then filtering out as the trees meet the open hard 'square’.

By manipulating height and form a simple linear bench can
become a slide and balance beam for example, as a well as a
relaxing seating element with backrests or just one to quickly
perch on.

New Square itself is also well suited to host artistic temporary
play installations and children’s events to foster a strong sense
of community, and encourage all ages to use the town centre.
Examples of such temporary playful attractions are an urban
beach, ping pong, deckchairs, children’s climbing walls, giant
chess, and jenga among many others.

. ) SEATING AND ART COULD BE COMBINED WITH A PLAYFUL ELEMENT QUAYSIDE SEASIDE IN NEWCASTLE - A TEMPORARY PLAYFUL SUMMER STREETS WITH INFREQUENT USE CAN INCORPORATE PLAY AND DWELL
Incidental play elements can be included throughout the town ATTRACTION ELEMENTS

centre to foster engagement with the public realm.

8 abed

g |

INCIDENTAL PLAY ELEMENTS CAN FIT INTO SMALL SPACES AND INCREASE MEANWHILE USE AND ACTIVITIES CAN PROVIDE VALUABLE OPPORTUNI-
VISITING ATTRACTIONS CAN BOOST VISITOR NUMBERS PLAY COVERAGE THROUGH THE TOWN CENTRE TIES FOR PLAY

PAGE 74



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.35 Overall Vision - Wayfinding and Signage

Effective and attractive signage is necessary
to create a legible network of spaces in an
aesthetic that could be expanded town wide.

Chesterfield town centre benefits from several existing way
finding totems. Although legible and useful, these are limited in
number and often don't stand out to the passer by as there is a
fairamount of street clutter, as explored in the earlier analysis
chapter of this document.

Aninitial part of the scheme could be to rationalise existing

furniture and signage, and have an overhaul of the vertical street
—gfape elements to create a stripped back united whole. Any new
D nd existing wayfinding elements should aesthetically tie into
ther furniture such as seating and bins.

%nother method of wayfinding is that of stone and metal inlays
which can be incorporated within paving, seating, and steps to
highlight names and directional arrows towards key locations
and landmarks.

Feature totems should be used to highlight key entry and arrival
points, such as the market and Corporation Street.

EXISTING WAY FINDING TOTEMS POTENTIAL FOR MORE STYLISED TOTEMS IN FITTING WITH NEW METAL AND STONE INLAYS OFFER POTENTIAL FOR ATTRACTIVE SIGNAGE
FURNITURE IN STEPS AND PAVING

STREET FURNITURE AS AN OPPORTUNITY FOR WAYFINDING SIGNAGE AS AN EDUCATION TOOL LIGHTING AND WAYFINDING COMBINED

PAGE 75



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.36 Overall Vision - Landmark Views

The design should maintain clear views to historic
wayfinding landmarks such as the Church of St
Mary and All Saints, and Chesterfield Market Hall.

The existing permanent market stalls partially screen the historic
prominent facade of Chesterfield’s Market Hall. By reducing the
number of permanent stalls and their proximity to the Hall, the
building can be seen and celebrated more fully.

The proposed landscape allows for a more permeable facade
to the Hall, allowing and encouraging spill out from businesses
into the public realm.

Chesterfield’s famous 'crooked spire' of the Church of St Mary
and All Saints is an important landmark and wayfinding tool.
From the central market area the spire acts as a key pedestrian
visual tool leading one towards the train station. The placement
of street trees and furniture along High Street should maintain
this view.

Rykneld Square acts as a welcome space to the church. The
redesign of this public space considers protects the primary
view of the church.

98 abed

PAGE 76

CHESTERFIELD MARKET HALL'S HISTORIC FACADE

KEY

I Historic facades of the Market Hall to
be kept clear

é Key view

CHURCH OF ST MARY AND ALL SAINTS 'CROOKED SPIRE'




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

6.37 Overall Vision - A Safe Space

Hostile Vehicle Mitigation will be incorporated
within the landscape design to mitigate against
potential terror threat.

To mitigate the threat of a vehicle borne terrorist attack, a
phenomenon that sadly has been on therrise, it is recommended
that Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM) is integrated within
Chesterfield Town Centre’s public realm.

Static HVM is generally more secure than manual barriers
which require staffing and automated ones which require
maintenance. Static HYM can be incorporated into the public
-ﬁaalm in the form of planters, mature trees, street furniture,
Wollards, and sculptural forms. In these ways HYM can become
(N attractive and functional permanent part of the landscape,
Qoreventing vehicular ingress, whilst allowing clear pedestrian
ows and encouraging dwell where seating and artworks are
used.

The best form of HVM is total exclusion of vehicles from an

area, however, vehicular access is required to Market Square,
New Square and the surrounding network of streets in order for
them to function as markets, shops, host events, and allow for
emergency service access. Therefore measures must be taken
to partially obscure access with permanent measures, with
telescopic bollards to take up the spaces where permanent HVM
is not appropriate. In this way the Town Centre can be secured
from unwanted, potentially dangerous vehicles yet still allow
access for authorised use. If needed, additional temporary
vehicular barriers can be added at times of heightened threat or
events.

The proposed HVM strategy is explored in more depth in chapter
eight of this document and is subject to ongoing review and
refinement with Chesterfield borough Council, the police and
the CTSA.

MATURE TREES CAN ALSO FUNCTION AS
BOLLARDS

LARGE PLANTERS CONTAINING TREES BOLLARDS CONCEALED IN HEDGING BOLLARDS AT BLACKBURN CATHEDRAL

PAGE 77



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

6.38 Overall Vision - Lighting

Alongside improvements to the public realm, the
Town Centre Transformation scheme includes
the development of lighting and data strategies.
These are being commissioned separately but
will form an integral element to the town centre
improvement works

A concept strategy developed by Arup Lighting identified a
number of lighting opportunities ranging from functional street
illumination, through to feature projections and architectural
colour washing.

A carefully crafted lighting scheme can greatly enhance the
usability of the public realm, whilst also assisting with security
and acting as a deterrent to anti social behaviour.

Chesterfield Borough Council also have great ambitions to
increase the digital connectivity and data based knowledge of
the town centre, supporting the 5G roll out, and assisting with
the monitoring and understanding of how the town centre is
used and the quality of the environment it provides.

88 abed

PAGE 78

2 Lighting Intervention summary

Church

Hew architvciural lighting scheme for charch with a
e iniaErwted approse b wid oprs D by rood eeounied
ey peopecions. Chonch becofnes foey nods poilnl G

el ol sebe
Siraat Lightin
Mew Soumne ; 9 g Rencwed Endscape lightisg o scloctied recs and
Kipdsce the mcorarriess vanety of wsll moosced additicn of hortape lanieens fo paths 1o improse
Lo Bewe] integrated lighting 80 public realm featuncs lumipsties with @ more =loeim and cosssdered legihadiny

I EEcalc Burmas scald 1o squast (of Sdn-ovenl mbds

approach. A Purdingios’ lamemn anigue o the strest

woubd creale & recoprozsbde deariiy

Cokour change fosntain lightizg

Imicgrated beoch lighting

Tiuman scale play’ clements along the rouls

Tree ephphiing
F.!:r\-l:‘;l-.l T

Event' mode Nighting providad by tall cobeens allowing
haoith Eenerall lipht b0 the sguere and le cihility for gobo
PIoCms Do crease @ “play ful” ol oo

[ .

i.,., L5 Ba l.'l-l-1

s

irees crowic a laman scale layes.

ialls themmesives

EXTRACT FROM ARUP DOCUMENT ' CHESTERFIELD LUF LIGHTING MASTERPLAN" JUNE 2021

CRenerad light 1o be sopplesmentsd by retail spill

Markel Sousire and Poclst Squarne

_l'-- Lorwe bevel Bighting indervenisons for stops, benches, R fugtuals Hernage Lanlcms o amca i hak with

This is set spainst a bockdrop of an upgraded
wrcicneciural lighieg wheme to ihe ke Hall

A coreigiest, mieprmed [sghisng ssproach b the marnies

Cresie o Ciareway” i0 site promoliag the gaalivy
OF AFIETYEn Doos 8 oo

v
«.} . { Imegrabed hench lighiing el e uplighing
3 supplesemead by wpgraded  srchicciural
scheme to Museum drrwing the eve foreund

]
5
'] The imresdueyion ol play clemmenis wrls the
| inleractive joursey threugh ihe wne

L]

Rylerid Sguans

Low leved Hphting imerveniens for siaps,
tonches, fmecs creale & bumas scalle larver

{harchyand book s feel

CHURCH GROUNDS ARE UNDER LIT,

MARKET LIGHTING FOCUSES ON THE STALLS AND NOT THE BUILDING

CHURCH ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING ADDS INTEREST BUT COULD BE
WITH POOLS F OF LIGHT AND DARK IMPROVED



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

68 abed

/

PAGE 79



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

7.1 Existing Market Provision

Chesterfield has been a market town since
1204 when it obtained its Royal Charter

from King John, giving permission to hold a
market twice a week. The market is therefore
steeped in centuries of heritage and social .
history. The opportunity to revitalise the
existing market provision marks the next
chapterin the town's market heritage

Discussions are ongoing with the market traders to agree an
amended market stall layout that aims to balance the number of
permanent market stalls against more temporary provisions and
opportunities to host a wider events and activities programme.

Market Square has been identified as retaining both permanent
and temporary stalls whilst New Square will house a temporary
provision, predominantly to accommodate traders on a
Thursday.

This exercise also aims to maximise pedestrian permeability
through the squares, driving footfall past stall holders, and
reducing anti social behaviours by creating a more open, visible
and permeable environment.

Drawings contained within this chapter are representative of
where discussions currently stand and are NOT necessarily the
—Onal designs or configurations.

06 abe

B m | e

PAGE 80



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

7.2 Existing Photos

u || il |_|_ §-||

L =l

By By

“Peaat e » ".,

- =k
A — Dy 1'"“."--. ....-'

_:“"'!'-IHFH-.I i

'i =1 .‘-‘r\- e
L]

'-" "_-n

NEW SQUARE SHOWING EXTENT OF MARKET STALLS AND CURRENTLY UNDER USE EXTENT OF OPEN SPACE

PAGE 81



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

7.3 Proposed Market Stall Design - Being developed with traders and subject to further consultation

The proposed new market stalls will offer
a greater trading area, a wider canopy to
provide improved weather protection, and T T T T
will be spaced more generously to allow
for improved pedestrian movement

This stall design is currently undergoing review and testing
by the market traders. Prior to acceptance a mock-up will be
installed on-site for review and comment. This design shown
here is therefore provisional.

26 abed

TGN DM
-
] [ m— b Triabei iged 3w Pl
& - L
D i — it v
-._\__\_\_-
L
r i, 8
e >
=
# 4 1 P e / s
oo, e ¥ 300 Sruchors spaon S0

PAGE 82



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

7.4 Proposed Permanent Market Stall Layout - Market Square (subject to continued trader input)

The market stalls are aligned around a central
flexible space. Permeability is improved via the
introduction of both corner and central routes
thus maximising trader interfaces with the
public. This permeability also improves natural

surveillance and aims to discourage anti social
behaviour.

€6 abed

<

335 SQM FLEXIBLE SPACE FOR
THE PROVISON OF MARKETS &

Gateway/Entrance
Feature

Arrival Space
Flexible Use
Dwell Space

Circulation Space
—®= Connection

335 SQM FLEXIBLE SPACE FOR
THE PROVISON OF MARKETS &

www|8'G80LV T

335 SQM FLEXIBLE SPACE FOR
THE PROVISON OF MARKETS &
EVENTS

|
~Gateway/Entrance-
Feature

Gateway/Entrance
Feature

KEY

«=== Qutward Facing Stalls
Inward Facing Inner Spaces
Stalls On Entry Routes
Internal Only Stalls

PAGE 83



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

7.5 Possible Temporary Market Stall Layout - New Square (subject to continued trader input)

In order to ascertain a capacity, temporary

stall provision has been calculated on the use

of stalls the same size as Market Square. In

reality the size of stalls used are likely to vary
subject to he nature of the event being held.

The stalls in New Square are to accommodate

overflow traders from Market Square on
busy market days and to accommodate

specialist markets. When not in use the square

can be used for a variety of activities.

6 abed

PAGE 84

SPATIAL FUNCTION

KEY
Arrival Space
7 Flexible Use
" Dwell Space
Circulation Space
—®= Connection

SPATIAL POSITIONING

KEY

=== Qutward Facing Stalls

«=== Inward Facing Inner Spaces

«w== Stalls On Entry Routes
Internal Only Stalls

|
|

|

L
—
-
—

Rl

(I

it []]]]1]]]]]]]]]]]]

N = B e S {& 7SN
R I — S W W— [ — Featuro

ET ) .
e
‘g# L i
T
| [

(I



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

7.6 Proposed Market Stall Layouts 3D arrangement

FLEXIBLE MARKET PROVISION
AND EVENT SPACE PERMANENT MARKET PROVISION

l——'_ Ih

—1

[,f“
}

PAGE 85

VIEW ALONG LOW PAVEMENT TO THE MARKET HALL WITH MARKET EVENT IN NEW SQUARE



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

7.7 New Square and Market Square - Overall Branding

In this technological age, a vibrant brand
is the cornerstone to creating an attractive,
successful and thriving market.

The adjacent images are all examples of successful UK markets
where good branding has elevated their appeal to a wider
audience. A strong, simple logo that can be used across all social
media platforms and be continued into on-site branding and
colour selection is essential to their success, subtly advertising
these destinations.

Chesterfield Market is currently lacking a brand. There is a wealth
of potential to create an iconic logo and branding for the market
and wider town which could allow the market to become a true
destination venue like those opposite.

The re-vamping of the market stalls provides the perfect
opportunity to tie this new brand into the colouring of the
canopies, perhaps with each stall holder choosing their colour
of cover from a small selected hue palette. The logo could then
be placed on the stalls as well as the entrances to the Market hall
itself.

This same logo can then be carried across all social media ALTRINCHAM MARKET HAS TRANSFORMED THIS ONCE FORGOTTEN HATCH - A POPULAR TEMPORARY FOOD MARKET IN CENTRAL
platforms and attractive imagery be used to promote the TOWN MANCHESTER

permanent and temporary stalls, as well as future events, to
wide audience, drawing a new, younger crowd to the town

quentre.
«Q

HEEEN
EDINEL RGH
FARMIERS
MARKE]

96 ®

POP BRIXTON - A POPULAR TEMPORARY FOOD MARKET AND PARTY VEN- EDINBURGH FARMERS MARKET - A WEEKLY FARMERS MARKET WITH MAKIE MAYOR - A THRIVING CENTRAL MANCHESTER FOOD MARKET AND

UE IN SOUTH LONDON FOOD AND DRINK EVENING VENUE
PAGE 86



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

16 abed

CREATING A SAFE

¢

o8

SPACE

N\

M,

PAGE 87



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

8.1 Existing Vehicular Access Control Measures

By amending existing secure lines and adding
new furniture and planting, an effective secure
line around the town centre can be created.

Although there are a wide range of bollards and street furniture
around the town centre, this isn't necessarily best placed to offer
effective Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM) as can be seen in the
adjacent diagram.

Many streets are left with no protection and some barriers are
ineffective at stopping hostile vehicle entry, such as, the Vicar
Lane bollards that are greater than 1.2m apart, with gaps to the
side.

Where the arrows are shown on the plan these routes
need reviewing to restrict vehicular movement and protect
pedestrians in the network of shopping streets.

Anindividual barrier design is necessary for each of these entry
routes, as explored over the following pages. Although each
point will have a bespoke design to suit its dimensions, uses and
existing utilities location, for example, the varying entrances to
the town centre should be united in their design language and
materiality.

In order to fully protect the town centre measures beyond the
red line need to be considered and an assessment of all entry
goint undertaken.
Q

D
(o]
(00]

KEY

= Site Boundary

I Pedestrianised shopping streets and squares in need of protection
® @ @ [xisting or already proposed HVM via bollards and or furniture
. Existing HVM via raised planters

® @ @ Existing bollards that are ineffective as HYM

Routes that currently allow unrestricted access into the site (if one way
and time restricted regulations are ignored)

PAGE 88

T
e

4 | ™=
Ao
: 1

Clear access down
.| Soresby Street if one
4 ignores one-way
regulations

Dead end
access to car
« parksonly

rar PHFT SRR LS
o e e
Although restricted i
access via signage a
hostile attacker could
,’ enter the site with clear

“ No vehicular
- access. Park road
"\ blocked at both

BOLLARDS AND STREET FURNITURE BLOCK OFF VEHICULAR ACCESS
ALONG PARK STREET

T

Nal clalan=t 1

Clear access
down
Glumangate

Nd

Y e I
wod syand

BOLLARDS AND SEATING PROVIDE HVYM TO THE WESTERN ONLY SIDE OF
NEW SQUARE

Clear access along High
Street via Burlington
Street and Packers
Row (although slightly
blocked via permanent

=1 g | Access can be gained
. . to Low Pavement via
bollards placed too far
apart on Vicar Lane and
by going against one way
regulations on South Street

BOLLARDS PROTECT THE MARKET HALL BUT THERE IS OPEN ACCESS
ALONG ITS EASTERN SIDE



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

8.2 Allowing For Necessary Vehicular Access And Servicing

Although the central Chesterfield area is in
need of protection, a level of vehicular access
will need to be maintained for functionality.

The existing one way loop down Glumangate and back up
Soreseby Street will need to maintained at all times to allow for
servicing the Market Hall, accessible car parking bays, and taxi
pick up and drop off. This loop also leads to the two way access
to and from the car park and servicing yard at the western side
of New Square.

At present this access loop is only restricted via signage and, if
-9ne wanted to, you could drive into the two squares and along
igh Street and Low Pavement. In order to restrict this vehicular
(hovement to the allowed routes, a series of HVYM approved drop
©nd standard bollards are proposed. The line of the bollards will
e at 1.2m clear spacings in line with police recommendations
and located at pinch points between buildings and toughened
furniture elements to minimise the number needed.

The same approach, along with protected trees, planting and
toughened furniture will define the wider access routes to
ensure that only approved service vehicles can enter the area
in yellow at certain times of the day, for example, early morning
deliveries.

When events are due to be held, access can be gained to these
host areas via drop bollards.

The town centre security strategy is still evolving and decisions
around the different types of HVM protection, including
temporary versus permanent, should be resolved at the next
design stage.

Options for the HVM approaches for the various access points
are explored over the following pages.

KEY

= Sjte Boundary

I Pedestrianised shopping streets and squares in need of protection
I Areas for potential events - drop bollards will allow restricted access
=mmm One way loop needing to be maintained at all times

e o o CarParkand serving route needing to be maintained - apart from when
events are on

= m Servicing routes needing to be maintained at some regulated times - can
be restricted via HYM drop bollards

N

O

Jfﬁj:‘.' "_l."!‘;. %
R VNI E SV HGATIE

' Proposed Packers Row
scheme will incorporate

it R
Servicing and events
access required. Can be

achieved via drop bollards |
= e,

One way loop access

| route needs to be

retained open
-

Taxi, Accessible
and Loading Bays
r—sC il FE

Service
Yard

1
. EE-IV

i ¢4
RS
’ '7".'

« Servicing and events !
access required. Can be il
achieved via drop bollards [ ¥+

P T o I
'.f': M 'tq._ V-.E[Park__

Sl

Lg ="
.

.| Servicing

2
-

= _ \r
. = | TR X S R

il L
[
-

PAGE 89



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

8.3 Proposed HVM Protection

The proposed types and locations of HVM to
protect Chesterfield's market and surrounding
area are illustrated adjacent and below.

e Bollard line to protect New Square with drop bollards to
allow access adjacent to Market Hall for controlled events
access.

Bollard line with drop bollards to allow day to day access
to car park and service yard.

HVM line created via bollards, substantial furniture
elements and tree protected by large kerb. Drop bollards
to allow for controlled events access into Market Square.

HVM incorporated in proposed Packers Row scheme.

Drop bollards, protected tree and toughened furniture
proposed as protective line.

Drop bollards, protected tree and toughened furniture
proposed as protective line.

Existing too far apart bollards removed and replace via
HVM appropriate drop bollards.

Drop bollards, protected tree and toughened furniture
proposed as protective line.

Park Road entrance already protected via bollards and
raised planters.

Bollard line with drop bollards to allow day to day
restricted servicing access.

e 87%0 0 000 0 O

Potential bollard or restricted access line to Rykneld
Square

Some of the above proposed HVM lines are explained in more
detail over the following pages. All are subject to further design
development, greater understanding of the security risk and the
appropriate mitigation measures.

KEY

— Site Boundary

[ Pedestrianised shopping streets and squares in need of protection
. Areas for potential events - drop bollards will allow restricted access

..... Approximate line of HYM N

PAGE 90



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

8.4 Proposed HVM Protection - New Square

New Square will serve as an extension

to the main market area, as well as a
playful, flexible, open space, protected via
bollards, trees and street furniture whilst
still allowing for required access.

New Square is required to fulfil a number of roles from,
temporary market, to event space, civic square and play space.
In event mode the space could hold hundreds of visitors, its
these events that increase the risk of an attack and require
considerations around HVM protection.

gurrent proposals for the square include raised planters and
ollards, both static and drop, to allow for servicing, emergency
@ cess and for vehicles to enter the space when organising

[ —
oyvents.
[ —

The northern edge of New Square is currently subject to
frequentillegal parking, the reduction in width to the vehicular
route combined with edge protection measures should resolve
thisissue.

i H - -
— [ .

e
'y
v i

L 8]

e ma e " EEE Y

RAISED METAL SIDES TO PLANTING BEDS CAN ALLOW THEM TO ACT AS
HVM

HVM BOLLARDS CAN BE BRANDED OR OF A HERITAGE STYLE IF DESIRED

Permanent bollards across flush pavement area.

Drop bollards to allow day to day access to car park and service
yard to the west of New Square. These will also allow access
into New Square for events programming when combined with
adjacent drop bollards. When there is an event on these will be
up to protect the full extent of New Square.

Semi-mature tree in natural stone kerb acts as HVM.

Permanent bollards across flush pavement area.

Drop bollards to allow access into New Square for events
programming when combined with adjacent drop bollards.

Potential permanent bollard line to protect New Square,
requirement is subject to further review.

Permanent bollards across flush pavement area.

Drop bollards to allow for restricted day to day servicing access
and to allow for events programming.

PAGE 91



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

8.5 Proposed HVM Protection - Market Square

Market Square will remain as the beating heart ﬂ
of Chesterfield's town centre and is therefore s
in need of protection from hostile vehicles. .

_I D 2

The eastern end of Market Square will be protected via
mitigation measures to the eastern entry points. Therefore the
eastern side of the square has the ability to be more open, with
much of the existing clutter of bollards and posts removed and
potentially repurposed elsewhere.

-

0
%5
— 538

EgEmssnnnn
i

The north western side of the square is in need of protection
though as this is where vehicles will have constant access via the
one way servicing and access route to be retained. Here a barrier
of static and drop bollards will meet with street furniture and
protected trees to form an attractive, permeable yet functioning
HVM line.

By,
e

1-_---::-

Whilst not HVM rated, benches will form an additional,
secondary line of protection to the north and south sides of the
square.

-
[

1 .

20T abed

: . i
TREES AND BENCHES WILL PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL LAYER OF
PROTECTION AND DEMARCATE VEHICULAR RUNNING ROUTES

PAGE 92

- S

Ty E r
-

* et [k :
i';----.-.-----------‘.-----_‘-------H---#-:‘:.:L----Ii_ltl‘}- .........;-'..li....

-
o

IIlIIlIlllll'lll-lIl.=llIllIIIHIIIIIIIIIIIIlllllI:I*IIlllllllllllllllllll

Fla ¥ i ¥
.+‘ b =

. r i 1] e

r 5
r pr— i F
N NN NN NN NN NN NN EEENEENEEEEEEEEEEEE
b -

il

snssssssnnnnnnnnna@ennnnnnnnnn
r

w - -
-

% e ORI T NN

5. A
2l T T

4

i '
4 TILI- -.I - J:! _.-Tll-"-i-'

TREES WITHIN VEHICULAR AREAS WILL HAVE HIGH KERB PROTECTION

Permanent bollards across flush pavement area.

Drop bollards to allow access along Market Street for restricted
day to day servicing.

Feature totem could also provide protection.

Drop bollards to allow access into Market Square for servicing,
emergencies, and events programming.

Permanent bollards across flush pavement area.

Semi-mature tree in sturdy natural stone kerb acts as HVM.



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

8.6 Proposed HVM Protection - Burlington Street and Church Lane

At present these streets are totally open, the below proposals seek to introduce HVM as attractive usable
gateways into the town centre. Operational logistics of these bollards will need to be the subject of a
town centre access management plan.

The HVM proposals for Burlington Street currently include
introducing a mature tree to green the street whilst still allowing
clear views to the crooked spire.

Church lane has the potential to become a bustling shopping
street, with The Burlington Pub spilling out into it. This outdoor
seating area has been incorporated in the proposal below.

This trunk will perform as a bollard with a static one to its
pavement side, and drop ones to the centre of the street to
allow for controlled servicing access.

A semi-mature tree, drop bollards and solid stone seating
could form an attractive, usable HVM barrier across the Lane
as a gateway into the town centre, in the same materials as

‘ ) ‘ ‘ ‘ . Burlington Street.
A solid stone bench will provide seating whilst also acting as

HVM.

The full solution could be installed as a single wide band to
protect and enliven the street whilst still allowing for ease of
pedestrian movement.

EXISTING VIEW ALONG BURLINGTON STREET FROM CHURCH WAY EXISTING VIEW ALONG CHURCH LANE FROM CHURCH WAY

e —

EXISTING VIEW ALONG BURLINGTON STREET FROM CHURCH WAY WITH HVM INCORPORATED EXISTING VIEW ALONG CHURCH LANE FROM CHURCH WAY WITH HVM INCORPORATED

PAGE 93



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

8.7 Proposed HVM Protection - Vicar Lane and South Street

South Street is fully open at present and the Vicar Lane bollards are ineffective against a determines
attack. The proposals introduce greenery as attractive protection measure.

EXISTING VIEW ALONG SOUTH STREET FROM NEW BEETWELL STREET

South Street has cafés and shops that could spill out into
the street more if vehicular movement was reduced via drop
bollards to its entrance.

A planter with raised sides could act as HVM whilst still allowing
room for the trees roots to penetrate into the ground below. This
would then tie into the design of those to the market area and
green the street.

Static bollards, in the same style as the drop ones, could ensure
the street is fully protected at the pavements.

PROPOSED VIEW ALONG SOUTH STREET FROM NEW BEETWELL STREET WITH HVM INCORPORATED

PAGE 94

EXISTING VIEW ALONG VICAR LANE FROM ST MARY'S GATE

The existing bollards at the Vicar Lane entrance to the shopping
area are spaced too widely to restrict vehicular movement and
therefore provide only a visual deterrent. The proposals seek

to replace them with a reduced number or drop bollards at

the pinch point below the archway, opening up the pavement
space.

Fastigiate trees could be added as an attractive additional
barrier to vehicle movement, whilst greening and framing the
shopping centre entrance arch.

EXISTING VIEW ALONG VICAR LANE FROM ST MARY'S GATE WITH HVM INCORPORATED



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

GOT 9bed

MATERIALITY

PAGE 95



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9.1 Approach to Materials

The approach to hard material selection is that of a
blend between old and new, where existing materials
are reclaimed and re-used and supplemented with new
elements to improve legibility and access, thus creating
greater definition and a sense of place and identity.

NEW AND MARKET SQUARES:

The existing materials provide a warm tone and unifying element, linking a variety of
architectural styles, facade treatments and adjacent uses. It also pushes the extents of
Market Square and New Square beyond the extents of its use, running from one building
facade to another reinforcing the sense of generous scale and space.

Whilst the existing materiality is wholly appropriate to the setting, it does have a
tendency to appear monotonous, displaying a single tone and little variation in unit size
other than the two dominant units. This vision recommends the retention and re-use of
the existing natural stone where possible, but also suggests the introduction of different
materials together with a wider range of unit size and pattern to define areas and uses
without harsh boundaries. This will add a layer of texture and interest which will be
supplemented by a range of street furniture and additional greening.

RYKNELD SQUARE AND CORPORATION STREET:

To the east of the heritage core the materiality changes to a blend of natural stone

paving, small unit concrete blocks and macadam, with the concrete block becoming

the dominant surface. With the loss of the stone cobbles comes a reduction in legibility
“Bhd character, creating public spaces that have no sense of place. Proposals seek to
(ce-introduce areas of natural stone whilst also introducing new materials such as clay to
E)\rovide added texture, tone and colour.

o
(o2}
DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS:

The emerging public realm hardworks selection is based around a number of design
drivers:

«  Drawing on the historical and present day materials pallet of the surrounding area
and site.

« Creating a cohesive public realm that expands and enhances the quality of the
existing area.

+  Ensuring that hard material selection and arrangement meets the needs of all users.
«  Ensuring materials are of an appropriate scale and character for the site's use.

« Material selection must also consider durability and longevity criteria ensuring
that each material is fit for purpose, easily sourced, has manageable maintenance
regimes, meets all applicable B.S and E.N safety/quality standards and considers
sustainability credentials.

PAGE 96

EXISTING COLOUR PALETTE

PROPOSED COLOUR PALETTE

PROPOSED COLOUR PALETTE MATERIALS INSPIRATION




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

9.2 Treatment of Existing Setts

There are a number of options available for the treatment of the
existing setts and cobbles located within the New Square and Market
Square environments.

Option 1: Grinding in-situ to re-level the surface finish and adding texture to
reduce slipping

Before the methodology for grinding the existing setts is finalised, an in-situ test should
be undertaken to see if the grinding process can take place without lifting the paving
material.

This is likely to be the most cost effective method of re-texturing the material but the
following factors need to be assessed:

Quality of the finish achieved if planed in-situ rather than off-site. A sample panel
of off-site ground setts should be produced for comparison.

The quality of the bedding and mortar materials of the existing installation. If the
existing bedding is unstable the grinding process is likely to have a detrimental
effect. If so, an option to lift and re-set the paving prior to grinding could be
explored, but would be more costly.

/0T 9bed

Levels of noise and disturbance.
Amount of dust generated.

Grinding around obstructions, such as channels and manhole covers, lamp posts
etc.

Interface with other materials on-site such as Yorkstone flags and kerbs

Within the study area the laying of the cobbles appears to be relatively unstable and
therefore grinding in-situ may not be appropriate without the initial re-setting of the
units.

Option 2: Grinding or splitting off-site to remove 'loafed' surface and re-
texture prior to re-laying on-site

Asample panel (see sample image opposite) should be created using the planed
Yorkstone setts to give an idea of what the refurbished material will look like. This should
be undertaken prior to making a decision on which option to follow. For larger setts
there could be an option to split the stones and re-lay with cut faces upward.
In the adjacent images the following has taken place:

Lifted from the street.

Planed off-site at a stone supplier's factory (Hardscape).

Re-laid rigidly with 5mm joint.

Option 3: Lift and re-set the cobbles, re-point and clean as needed

Re-pointing will stabilise the surface but will not remove the uneven surface or 'loafing'
that has developed on the majority of the cobbled areas. Consideration should therefore
be given to the location of any retained and untreated setts.

OPTION TWO

OPTION THREE

PAGE 97



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9.3 Re-use of Existing Setts - Understanding the Existing Condition

In order to fully understand the potential to reuse the existing cobbles it is essential to Consideration is being given to the best method of constructing the
understand the existing laying conditions, the depths of the unit sizes, and the ability to new paving systems and the pros and cons of each system are outlined
successfully lift the material without excessive breakages. Chesterfield Borough Council below. Currently a rigidly laid system is favoured but the hybrid option
have undertaken initial ground investigations to establish the existing situation. may be a viable cost effective and more carbon friendly alternative.

FLEXIBLE LAYING

Trial pit (information extracted from CBC Property and Technical services report)
Pros
Atrial pit was excavated within an area containing both Yorkstone paving and stone cobbles. The cobbles were partly bedded on a

varied depth of concrete above a ash/hardcore layer. A smaller area of cobbles were bedded on a thin ash layer on top of the natural
clay/shale layer. The excavated cobbles varied in depth from 120mm to 220mm but were mostly around 180mm. « Can belifted and relaid easily, particularly useful in areas that may need excavating
to access utilities.

Cost effective.

The slab that was lifted was of a uniform depth of 75mmwith slightly chamfered edges. There were bedded on a 75mm of concrete

layer on top of hardcore and the natural shale which showed signs of lamination. +  Allows for the paving material to be reused in the future.

Cons

Careful cleaning and maintenance required in order to avoid removing jointing
material.

Less robust than rigidly laid alternative.

Lack of jointing material can emphasise rounding of the top surface.

« Periodically joints may need topping up.
i Lack of jointing material means paving can not turn corners.
o
7. _LAMINATED SHALE/CLAY o
o ATURALLAYER =] & i e s
> mavpmcLeaeEte sl B0 eSS R i RIGID LAYING
Q R iy A e N i S T i e e R i o e e T e e e
‘:\ o s R A A B it Sl E ________________ Pros
8 Y . + Highly robust surface.

« Minimal maintenance required.
Features a joint to reduce effect of tumbled corners.

Joint allows paving to turn corners and follow curves.

Cons
«  Expensive to install.
Difficult to lift if required.

Paving material cannot be lifted and reused in the future.

HYBRID

o May be possible to use Rigid construction and Flexible
in other areas, such as areas where there is likely to be
future change and no vehicular traffic but this comes
with maintenance considerations.

EXCAVATED AREA SAWN COBBLES EXPOSE THE RANGE OF COLOUR VARIATION PRESENT
ON-SITE

PAGE 98



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

9.4 Approach to Planting

The site area contains a handful of existing street trees.
Proposals suggest the addition of a number of new trees
to provide greening, shade, and ecological benefits at
the heart of the town. These trees are located throughout
the project area where site constraints allow.

Following the Governments commitment to the Paris Climate Agreement, Chesterfield
Borough Council have developed a Climate Change Action Plan aimed at reducing
CO2 output with a view to the UK meeting NetZero by 2050. Part of this action plan
includes identifying opportunities for carbon capture or sequestration. The inclusion of
increased numbers of urban trees will support this target whilst also:

Increasing biodiversity.
Providing shade and shelter.
Contributing towards improved health and wellbeing outcomes.

Adding to the verdant aesthetic of the town centre and promoting seasonal change.

- 60T 9bed -

Combating the heat island effect.

This vision therefore proposes to retain existing trees where possible and install a
number of others throughout the study area, where utilities and other constraints
permit, and where possible encourage the introduction of SuDs principles to manage
surface water drainage.

Existing trees within public areas are mature and generally in good health. The vast
majority are London Planes (Platanus x acerifolia) with a couple of smaller birch trees.
The Planes would benefit from pollarding, as is the norm for this species, and the
reduction of hard surfacing under the canopy, especially around the trunk. The church
grounds provide a wider variety of tree species with increased visual and ecological
benefits.

Shrub planting should be introduced within the study area, subject to a long term
commitment to maintenance, where it can be used to define character areas, increase
ecological values and provide seasonality. When used in conjunction with SuDS
principles, shrub and herbaceous planting can create an interesting and characterful
addition to predominantly hard existing spaces. If designed correctly these areas can be
attractive and low maintenance, though no planting is ever truly maintenance free.

The following key drivers have been developed for the approach to planting:
«  Semimature trees should be used as street trees to anchor views.

« Trees should demonstrate a range of form and seasonal interest, and be of an
appropriate scale and character for the site.

« Planting should contribute to the ecological value of the proposals including
pollinators, semi native varieties, and those that attract insects or provide habitat.

« Planting should include species that are safe to be included within a public
environment.

+ Planting species chosen should be easy to maintain.

PROVIDING SHADE AND COMBATING THE URBAN HEAT ISLAND
EFFECT

NEW STREET TREES DRAWING VIEWS IN ALTRINCHAM PLANTING TO SEATING AREAS IN BRUNSWICK STREET, SUDS SCHEME AT GREY TO GREEN, SHEFFIELD
MANCHESTER

PROPOSED COLOUR PALETTE

PAGE 99




PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9.5 Climate change and adaptation and considerations for the public realm

Chesterfield Borough Council has stated ambitions to achieve
carbon neutrality by 2030 and has declared a Climate Emergency.
Considerations around a sustainable and climate secure future have
been embedded throughout the proposals.

At the current trajectory climate change is predicted to increase temperatures to a
peak of 6 degrees higher than the present rate with rainfall increasing by a third in
winter periods, reducing by a third in summer and sea levels rising. These changes
will have a direct impact on the health and neighbourhoods of individuals, as well as
internationally.

In response Chesterfield Council declared a Climate Emergency and created a Climate
Change Action Plan which was adopted in 2020, which has set several key targets as part
of the Action Plan to mitigate and adapt to the affects of climate change. Key policies of
the Action Plan include:

«  Sustainability and climate change mitigation integrated into the growth strategy.
«  Climate change impact assessments for key council decision reports.

«  Collaboration with county wide forums on climate change and all Derbyshire
authorities.

« Arrangement of formal governance arrangements to use section 106 and
Community Infrastructure Levy to fund sustainable community-based initiatives.

«  Sustainable procurement conditions implemented for suppliers.

Lobbying of central government to tackle climate change.

Employment of a dedicated climate change officer.

Training of elected members on the impact of climate change to inform decisions.

Identifacton of climate change mitigation and adoption projects to implement.

- OFT @bed -

A ‘pathway to becoming carbon neutral council’ and ‘carbon neutral borough’ with
new policies to support.

In conjunction with Chesterfield’s Climate Change Action Plan the following proposals
can be found within the concept design:

«  Canopies over stalls to provide shade and shelter.
«  Traffic reduction to reduce pollution levels.

« Increasein green infrastructure including street trees for shading and carbon
sequestration.

«  Sustainable urban drainage.

«  Useof lighting that considers ecological impacts as well as LED fittings for power
efficiency and solar for power reduction.

« Implementation of data strategy — KPI’s (key performance indicators) to be
identified.

«  There-use of existing materials where possible to reduce the carbon impact of new
materials transported or manufactured for the proposals.

PAGE 100

MARKET STALLS WITH OVERHEAD COVERAGE TO PROTECT AGAINST WEATHER

EFFICENT & ECOLOGICALLY CONSIDERATE LIGHTING



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

9.6 Existing Trees and Planting - Market Square

Atree survey of the existing trees within the
Market Quarter was carried out by Chesterfield

Borough Council Arboriculturalists in January
2022.

This report provides a fully detailed physiological and structural
inspection of all the existing trees, noting their size, condition
and age. The report also makes a number of recommendations
in relation to ongoing management.

The trees are not protected by TPO but are within the Town
_8entre Conservation Area.

cg)fthe 14 trees surveyed all bar one are London Planes, the
®emaining one being a Norway Maple.
H

ﬁwe general quality of the trees has been extracted from the
report and is shown below:

From our observations it isimmediately noticeable that all the
trees are subject to an ongoing pollarding regime. This is very
common with London Planes in the urban setting, with the city
of London as a prime example. From the extent of the regrowth
the trees have fallen outside the normal cycle and repollarding
is overdue. The pollarding appears to be primarily as a means
of containing the trees growth in respect to proximity to the
surrounding buildings. This is apparent when looking at trees
9333 t0 9340 as they are visibly one sided with most of the
developed canopy structure furthest from the buildings. Overall
itis noticeable that there is very little stem and canopy damage.
The trees appear (within their restricted growing environment)
to be in an acceptable condition. There is though, little in the
way of buttress development in all but three of the trees and this
is likely due to the confined growing conditions and ground level
and the restrictive nature of pollard management.

I

Offices

K
l

4 p ~ | 1 92.0m +
NG\ 60000
o) Spasse
‘K\,,, -
@ O D w
%%@H 1';‘ ~ New Square
T T i\
NG ‘
=AY % - Market Hall
i |
osts
|| Il {
|-
( I —_— IN_ w - I )
o ﬁ Job" 1063 T R [
N Centre ' TS EEE .
= 51to 57 ' _
— N
2 43toag
8/
| o [ 35t039

TREE SURVEY SHOWING ASSOCIATED ROOT PROTECTION AREAS

23

W BT
—711 | | |
) il
- —
=a 1___r_1:__:

1 - I|l " I I'I 'l I
A et

-'l."_EI Illh II|I ::‘:__14___
A=l \F=
0 S

PAGE 101



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9.7 Species Selection - Street Trees to Predominantly Hard Areas

POTENTIAL LARGER TREE SPECIES

When considering species selection, particularly
trees, consideration should be given to a number
of factors:

« Space available - both above and below ground.

« Seasonality.

« Ground conditions.

« Climate - in particular wind.

« Ultimate height and spread of the tree when mature.

« Ecological and environmental benefits (pollinator species,
CO2 sequestration).

« Potential impact of climate change.

« Access requirements that may affect the canopy spread.

PLATANUS ORIENTALIS DIGITATA

QUERCUS PALUSTRIS

;)U POTENTIAL MEDIUM TREE SPECIES
«Q

xisting trees within Chesterfield are surviving well despite being
Fsurrounded by hard materials. This would suggest the ground

popnditions are conducive to tree growth.

A number of species would be suitable for implementing within
the town centre depending on location and the factors listed
above.

ALL IMAGES FROM BARCHAM LTD: WWW.BARCHAM.CO.UK PYRUS CALLERIANA CHANTICLEER CRATAEGUS SPECIES (IN VARIETY) AMELANCHIER ARBOREA ROBIN HILL

PAGE 102



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

9.8 Existing Trees and Planting - Church Grounds

Atree survey of St Mary and All Saints Church
was carried out by Chesterfield Borough
Council Arboriculturalists in October 2021.

This report provides a fully detailed physiological and structural
inspection of all the existing trees, noting their size, condition
and age. The report also makes a number of recommendations
in relation to management and removals.

Of the 36 trees surveyed 7 individuals have been identified for
removal together with a group of holly to the boundary.

The general quality of the trees has been extracted from the
port and is shown below:

®he tree species on-site have been largely grouped together

Eround the churchyard and are mostly even aged. This would

Wggest, for example, the Cherry trees 9289 -9283 were all
planted together at the same time. So to the London Plane trees
at the entrances from St.Mary’s Gate and Rykneld Square are
likely to have been planted at the same time although much
earlier than other trees in the churchyard. From historic images
we have been able to view, it is evident that there have been
changes to the layout of the churchyard, especially with regards
to removal and siting of headstones and footpaths. This may
explain why the trees have been planted as they have. It is also
noticeable that there is a limited palette of species, namely
Lime, Holly, Cherry and Plane with other individual trees such as
Indian Bean tree and Hornbeam.

”

- . - .’:
\7 PH -
G

Tree location Plan ;j,-"

Not to scale @ " ok

" Proposed new planking
P

Hr'
-

k L
TREE LOCATION PLAN EXTRACTED FROM CBC TREE SURVEY REPORT

|
Rl T R —

Coomp

.
TREE SURVEY SHOWING ASSOCIATED ROOT PROTECTION AREAS

PAGE 103



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9.9 Species Consideration - Church and Rykneld Square

When considering species selection, for the
church environment and Rykneld Square a
greater focus can be given to diversity of species,
form and biodiversity qualities.

Rykneld Square considerations:

«  Tree species with multi stem form and well as clear stem.

«  Species that offer high biodiversity and carbon capture
qualities.

« Consideration should be given to any archaeological
restrictions.

« Consider seasonal qualities and, due to proximity of the
church, photo opportunities.

. Utilise hedging to create enclosure.

Church environment considerations:
«  Species with a strong association to church yards such as
yew.

. Feature species that can act as visual focal points and MULTI STEM SPECIES CAN CREATE INTIMACY AND
increase both the visual qualities and biodiversity of the ENCLOSURE
church grounds.

Diversify the existing church ground species mix.

yTT abed

History behind churchyard yew trees

Yew trees were planted in churchyards to prevent archers from
procuring suitable branches for making bows and having good
weapons to oppose the King’s men.

Yew trees for making bows were planted in churchyards where
they would nor be eaten by, and poison, grazing animals.

There was another reason for Christians to view yews as holy:
The heart of the tree is red, while its sap is white. These colours
symbolise the blood and body of Christ. As a hardy evergreen

tree able to survive on infertile soil, the yew also suggested
rebirth and resurrection MIXES OF PLANTING WILL INCREASE BIODIVERSITY HEDGING CAN CREATE ENCLOSURE AND ADD STRUCTURE TO THE LAYERING OF DIFFERENT SPECIES ADDS INTEREST
’ DESIGN

PAGE 104



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

9.10 Existing Trees and Planting - Corporation Street

Atree survey of the existing trees on Corporation
Street was carried out by Chesterfield Borough
Council Arboriculturalists in Febuary 2022.

This report provides a fully detailed physiological and structural
inspection of all the existing trees, noting their size, condition
and age. The report also makes a number of recommendations
in relation to ongoing management.

The trees are not protected by TPO but are within the town
centre conservation area.
5

(&)f the 4 trees surveyed all are Norway Maples.
(9]

FBhe general quality of the trees has been extracted from the
?q:port and is shown below:

Trees 9342 and 9345 are both typical of their species, with 9345
growing too close to the street light and therefore in need of
some remedial pruning in the future. Tree 9343 is one sided with
poor form and is restricted by the tree grille while tree 9344 has
damage to it's tree grille and has lighting and signage attached
to the trunk. This tree also has a one sided canopy due to poor
pruning because of it's close proximity to he building next to it.

TREE SURVEY SHOWING ASSOCIATED ROOT PROTECTION AREAS

PAGE 105



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9.11 Approach to Landscape Maintenance

The success of any planting scheme lies within
the quality of the maintenance and a long term
commitment to the continued upkeep and
tending of planted spaces.

With increasing pressures on Local Authority maintenance
budgets, the time devoted to the upkeep of public green spaces
is often very limited, covering only the basic maintenance
operations and ensuring the health and safety of the public.
Even the simplest of planting schemes requires maintenance, no
landscape is ever maintenance free.

In developing the future approach to planting, the required
management and maintenance needs to be fully understood
and budgets secured into the longer term to ensure that the
vision behind the planting can be fully realised.

Local Authorities are increasingly looking to partnering
arrangements with a third party to assist with the maintenance
responsibilities as part of a wider remit or mission statement,
whilst also providing the opportunity for local communities

to getinvolved and establish a collective responsibility for the
upkeep of green spaces.

Wildlife, and health and wellbeing charities, realising the benefits
f urban greening, may be interested in engaging with the
aqoouncil to develop the opportunities provided within the TCT
‘%cheme. Wildlife organisations are actively encouraging the
Haclusion urban wildlife attractors such as bid and bat boxes,
'gpoftop apiaries, and pollinator planting. Health and wellbeing
charities recognise the therapeutic values from working
collectively within a green environment, supporting the local
health care system via social prescribing activities.

Such collaborations may wish to be considered as the project
progresses, thus ensuring the long term guardianship of urban
green spaces.

PAGE 106



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

/TT abed

'l A}b‘ - ‘*

kg \‘ .i..-..

*\

FURTHER INFORMATIQ

PAGE 107



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

10.1 Public Transport and Bus Links

The site is well served by bus routes and it is — En el [NV — B A S 7 N AN
R | | = - A B - e = = = g b o
a short walk to the train and coach stations. ) i S -5 - i ) NGENY Je
S Al e | | ) i1 1 | *, 4
. -i [ o __ = g |_: _|I | ll 1 | ; — = — T .I | \""' - . "'F ’
. X X . | | T e + | - L1 % g e . / . ‘r,.' L A !
« From the Market Hall Chesterfield Train Station is a ten || [ I ] |- — L B 4 s = —0 N N /,.- y 2 /-a_f_:ff 4
minute walk away to the north east, on the far side of the | Il | Jir s T LS5, ) |1 AN N & £ o e
Parish Church. The iconic crooked spire provides clear [ | f il I i sATERETE e — : NV
X . . . . | | | =1 4| 5 T = T - T - B, * (’j ,r,u" _.l')ll - I R Train
wayfinding direction from the market towards the station. | ! — I || | | el [ = 1 =y, 9 ] sl LAy al
[ 1] - = =l [ I | S | | S Sy, p ’{.’ / R Station 2
l3f | | (11 o J_ 3 T O Min Walk

Chesterfield Coach Station is immediately south of the
Market Square.

«  The market and central retail quarter is well served via
several bus routes and stops in close proximity.

The bus route on Church Lane acts as a barrier to movement
between Burlington Street, Rykneld Square and the Chruch.

T abed

REY

= Red Line Boundary

@ Bus Stops

‘ Coach Station N

é Shared Bus and Cycle Route

CHESTERFIELD COACH STATION

PAGE 108



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

10.2 Vehicular Movement

Restricted vehicular access creates
a pedestrian priority zone.

« Vehicles are discouraged from the retail quarter and market
itself via a network of one way streets and the area within the
red line boundary being restricted to delivery and or buses
only.

« These restrictions allow for necessary servicing, events and
emergencies whilst creating a pedestrian priority area where
people feel safe to occupy.

Physical delineation between vehicular running routes and
pavement spaces within these pedestrian priority areas is
highly visible.

6TT 9bed -

KEY

Red Line Boundary

ﬁ One Way Routes

= mm Restricted Access To Cars

mmmm Unrestricted Two Way Route (D

—A\

haf EIRERREY

KNIFESMITHGATE BIKE AND BUS ACCESS ONLY

W\ (d

awal

@O

PAGE 109



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

10.3 Public and Private Car Parks

Car parking and drop off around the site
enables access to the various town centre
amenities and retail opportunities.

«  There are very few parking and drop off areas inside the red
line boundary itself thanks to the pedestrian zone, but there
are several adjacent accessible drop-off zones.

« There are ample car parking opportunities less than ten
minutes walk away from the town centre pedestrian zone.

REY

%— Red Line Boundary
HEI Public Car Parks

& Private Car Parks

I Accessible Parking

LOADING BAYS OUTSIDE MARKET HALL

PAGE 110

WEST BARS

Yy,

ARV

mmgmn‘ﬁm@ﬁﬁﬁ

YOI

TV LRI

L Ay

oy SO

VA AR

@y By

SATERGATE

CELDER WAT

FENTRAL PAVEDgER

ORISR

mﬂ@ﬂa’ﬂﬁﬂ@

CHURGH LANE

D BORE_




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

10.4 Taxi Ranks and Drop Off

The study area includes many loading/drop off — L ! B ﬂl’
areas both within the red line and on adjacent B — L ] [ - ey i
. . . —— ey , | . ~ =
streets. There is very little cycle parking. | | B ) L =
[ | “ s - .
| e Bl Y . - o
« Loading is accommodated on many of the streets leading || | = / 'I' - S i I T—
into the site and along the northern edge of the Market Hall [ [ f | [ ] B ) = 11 i
| - = 1] i
itself which is well used by market traders. [, | —! [ |' [ m = | .I
= 11 SN i | T
« Thereis only one area containing two bike racks to the south '_‘_‘_-_-_—JII.' | | e | pm | { I'I
of the site, leaving few opportunities for green transport. — | | ,l | é | el g | - [ I."
' 1 — % | | - [ : — |I I 5
| s | | |I
| Il = | =1 : 3l [ ] I|
1 | ) 5
.arl - i_.-—' |- “. |Ii .
M| 1k il
{ |
4

Taxi ranks are distributed around the study area within a

short walk of the town centre.
|

|III -__
|
|I |:

|
=

T2T 9bed

KEY

m—— Red Line Boundary

[ ] Drop-Off/Loading
I Taxi Ranks

PAGE 111

LOADING BAYS OUTSIDE MARKET HALL



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

10.5 Utilities - New Square and Market Square

Underground utilities should be considered
when designing the public realm.

Existing and proposed below ground utilities should be
considered when designing the public realm. Where at all
possible, proposals should seek to avoid the need to divert
or lower existing services.

Proposals should also consider the placement of trees,
structures and furniture requiring substantial foundations to
avoid clashes or compromising the existing network.

«  Public realm proposals should consider the need for
additional below ground provisions to ensure that the public
realm can support a range of uses and maintain flexibility.
The use of temporary supplies to support events should be
avoided.

«  The below ground utilities are primarily found to the edges
of New Square and Market Square, however, some power
ducts extend into New Square, presumably to serve the
existing market stalls. Further investigations may be needed
to accommodate any additional trees in this area.

2c1 abed

EVENING LIGHTING INFRASTRUCTURE IN MARKET SQUARE

PAGE 112

SURVEY BY GREENHATCH GROUP ON 18-03-22




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

10.6 Utilities - Rykneld Square and Church

« Thebelow ground services along Burlington Street run
centrally along the carriageway, with some free space toward
the southern pedestrian route. To accommodate street
trees and furniture in this area careful consideration of the
underground services will need to be taken into account.
There are few tree proposed along the street, and raised
planting at the eastern entrance of the site will allow planting
without disturbing services.

In Rykneld Square and the Church grounds the underground
services follow the pedestrian footpaths to the edges of

site, and also loop through the centre of the site. Whilst the
underground services are not as plentiful as elsewhere in
the market quarter consideration of the electric ductings
will need to be factored into the placement of landscape
features. There are also some unknown ducting pipes
identified in the survey which will need to be investigated
further.

¢2T obed

N :
—_— -
@ i - _" - "J e
- i ~ |.
- % |
FOOTPATH LIGHTING INFRASTRUCTURE IN ALL SAINT'S & ST. MARY'S SURVEY BY GREENHATCH GROUP ON 18-03-22

PAGE 113



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

10.7 Utilities - Corporation Street

« Corporation Street has many below ground services which
run down the central carriageway and especially congregate
at the western end of the site at St. Mary’s Way. Due to fire
tender access routes and the character of the street as a busy
through route, Corporation street will need to be evaluated
in its placement of trees and furniture, and consider above
ground features to reduce the impact on below ground
services.

y2T abed

CCTV INFRASTRUCTURE IN RYKNELD SQUARE

PAGE 114

SURVEY BY GREENHATCH GROUP ON 18-03-22




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

10.8 Below Ground constraints - New Square

The former toilet block to the Market Hall extends below New Square and, whilst
partially filled in and now disused, this places constraints on the uses above.

Drawings produced by Ramboll indicate the extent of the
disused toilet block. Their drawings note that the existing slab
(roof) should not be overloaded. It is unknown how far below
existing surface levels the slab sits. Proposals therefore should
avoid both level changes and surcharging of weight on the slab.

The development of uses and events in New Square should take
into consideration associated loading restrictions

on CCTV survey, removal of \
obstruction required. High level pipe
32mm into ceiling

GeT obed

{ NOTES
1 >Stack from |
| Floor above | 8 | 2 X1 X2 X3 X4 X5 X6
s Meter Feom g ?lpe hu[;g V NOTE:
}‘E rom cel II’\ ZL 3900 3000 2400 600 3000 3000 3000 4?0 3450 300 3802 R 3400 N 3400 R 3070 A~ 3050 A~ 3050 - Set“ng out to be prOVIded by ATChIteCt
| 9 8 7)9 5 4 ( 1 X1 X2 X3 X4 X5 X6
| All dimensions TBC on site.
| e , - —(
Stack identifed bn unknown \ i ‘ 10 existing sla K.2
. CCTV survey. Uable to - T il o
New connection to :;Z‘ii:ﬁ;: grund - (] @ I &;1? I |
existing stack from approximate L —‘ & K Gofur setting out sublect
proposed toilets, see drg S (o flasement wal locafion
18778—SR—M—-400 ‘ [X gsn ] - 1 1
|50 thick
?ltggi( af{)%rce T P A153 mesh) cast once i i ‘ ‘
Existing toilet block to Fioat abe ) ol emove | |
be abandoned. Access from ceiling N J | | |
for inspection only. NQW men's NOTE: & |ss3s0m Infil existia i i, See drawinfs 187 XC
toilets at BELOW GROUND TOILETS IN MARKET in mass cdnarete ‘ Sesalons o it ‘ ‘
At least 1 gtu to be left ground floor PLACE (DO NOT OVERLOAD ROOF) .
0 . P 1V H o 1200x1200x1200 deep
open to avoid flooding of Newlwing wals to | |1 il vokwith Walls cut do ] N mass coharete base J J
existing toilets. e I mass cpnorete up Ay X0 X.C) ot (9
18778-ST-305- 7‘ to existing SSL- — 89.000
™~ ﬁ’:f X X.B
\4 i J I | ‘ g Existing | | | |
s T T — 17 ) P e | |
Spire Fisheries 88.350 ] Loadbearing] | Manhole
Unable to access - sint _ wall i [ — h ‘
location and connectiol T—slab to run thrgugh A
i iabto runi | X Ak 3 X AYeX
Il stsame ool ) ‘ =r— ‘ ‘ FINAL DESIGN INTENT
p erem ass conedo s X.0 X.C F1 s
10 remodolel- | D . os|s|g
1 . . [k EEE
L1 I e
B i i '600x2000x1200 d . 5| 2
| 1 sk conerelo base. 1 1 3 ||2|5]2| Description
3 into fock (TBC) 'R [=l[EIEd[=]
. fient

"TOC 89.700 m TOC 89.700 m| ‘ CHESTERFIELD
‘ BOROUGH COUNCIL

250- |

B.1

Pipe to be
grouted up

£ c
|
|

Bischar - _E 3
ge

through floor

Heavy encrustation noted on
CCTV survey. Encrustation to

®

waptde (X)) () & @ "
sl CHESTERFIELD MARKET

i r)’?n?ovted. bEXEtmtg i ‘CCL 89.79 strip footing in roc Standard Notes

manhaole to be ke . M

i i p ) 1, All drawings to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architects, R E FU RB I SH E NT
service at all times IL 86.12

Engineer's and Specialists drawings & specifications.

Debris grease indicated 2, All specified products may be replaced with similar products

approved by the structural engineer. The contractor shall submit all | Drawing Title
on CCTV survey, pipe to o demonstrate
be jetted ’ Toilets & sinks to b S Pt
e jette oilets sinks to be W
! ted t isti i 1. All excavations shallbe carried out n a safe manner, complying > ! Amensions shown on dravings are in milimeres LOWER BASEMENT PLAN
connecte 0 existing main with the requirements of the Heallh and Safety Regulations, BS 4, Levels shown are generally taken from the survey undertaken by @ 89.00 LEVEL
drain run Loadbearing Masonry Walls 8000:Part 1 and any local by-laws. Formby Surveys Lid, December 2010. Levels shown in parenthesis
(95.580, etc) are taken from the original structural engineering
‘The original CBC archive floor plans indicate a number of existing 2. For dewatering fefer to Contractors proposals. drawing relating to the 1980 refurbishmentrebuild, and should be
masonry walls as loadbearing. However these are not always shown P used for information only.
on the drawings at alllevels/ocations. From the stair drawings itis 3. Foundations to be founded on ground with an allowable bearing
New ladies clear that there are also other loadbearing masonry walls supporting D oKy nspected & agreed wilh the Local Authoriy 5, DO NOT scale craings, i in doubt ask
local sections of landings and fiights. Building Control Officer.
» f 6, Al proprietary products and systems shall be used i stict
Disabled access toilets at HEALTH & SAFETY NOTES Prior to demoliion of particular walls the Contractor shall check 4. The formation of allthe foundations is to be inspected and accordance with the manufacturersisuppliers instructions UNO.
. ground floor whether the walls are loadbearing or not; and tempoary props shall approved for compliance with the structural requirements prior to
toilet at ground Site specific hazards include the following; be installed accordingly concreting 7. The Contractor shall be responsible for the design, fabrication,
} erection and removal of all temporary works and shallprovide
floor . Occasional use of load bearing masonry walls in the 5. Bases to be centred on column positions U.N.O. temporary bracing and back propping necessary fo maintain
1980 RC framed extension (refer to archive drawings manc r@ramt
~but know loadbearing shown on Gifford drawings). 6. Mass concrele to bases lo be designated mix FND2Z fo Clause  SUC1ua! stabllty during construction. 1610161 827 1690 Kingacour marchester @rambl o ok
. \F/tz g::rv‘e .r';iisn swewgé.;;:m :rr‘e';n E‘m :;g'ncal — E10... TBC 8. Specific temporary works constraints if and where applicable are : )
3 olumn Baseplates il hich i
. RC slab panels designed continuously with adjacent o 7. Where sides of beams are cast against natural ground then side  "0'°° ©" 11 Ramboll drawings to which they refate.
spans. Demolition of one panel therefore can reduce Column Baseplate | Bolts. Grout cover to be increased from 50mm to 75mm. 9. For following notes refer to drawings. Scale (@ A3) Date. Drawn.
the strength of the next panel. g >  18778.ST1
. Rooftop plant space slab panels are not deslaned for 152UC [ 350x350x20 | 4No. M16 chemical anchors Nominal 25mm 8. Allwalls to be positioned centrally on foundations, UNO. J?-,il‘l?ﬁ"”s e As SEPT 11 JH
Legend plant loading. Specific beams and columns are 203UC 400x400x20 | 4No. M16 chemical anchors Nominal 25mm 18778-ST-102 —indicated
believed to be designed for existing items of rooftop 150 PFC | 200x175x10 | 1No. M12 chemical anchors Nominal 25mm 9. Insulation, dpc's, dpm’s & gas membrane to Architects details Floor slab 18778.5T102 Drg. vo. Rev.
‘ plant. 200 SHS | 400x400x20 | 4No. M6 chemical anchors Nominal 25mm i i Timber 18778-8T-102
— Underground Foul Drainage 10. Existing slabs to be reinstated over new pad foundations, Steehwork 18778.5T-104 18778-ST-100
apping on new DPM where necessary and B10 dowel bars @ Mtal Dock 18778.5T 104 -o |- F1
————  Above ground Foul Drainage 250mm centres with A193 mesh (50 top cover) Raised Floor Deck 18778.5T104
DRAINAGE NQOTES 13, Tgwe o} n;roctor shall give at leost one working 24. All redunda
Undergrdting Sfifface Watec 7 Pl AT o ol to b rrTTTTY ] ] I I I I I |
Drainage ays notice to the Engineer to allow are to be 10 o 10 2 50 100 ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE 420x297
1. All work to be in accordance with opportunity to examine any formation or the propos mm - NATURAL SCALE

Sewers for Adoption latest Edition and BS EN witness any testing. drainage ¢

PAGE 115



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

9¢T abed

PAGE 116

f & ’
! i

SUPPORTING DRAWING

T




RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

11.1 Overall General Arrangement

/2T 9bed

PAGE 117



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

11.2 Market Quarter

T T . | L—/L — — = = ©

NOTES:
+ 1.Donot scale from this drawing.
. 2. Always work to noted dimensions,
[ 3.All dimensions are in millimetres unless
— - ~ othenwise stated
+ — — 4. Allsettingout,levels and dimensions to be
- ~—_ | ageedonsie
— - 5. The dimensions of all materials must be

— - checked on site before being laid out.
+ 6. This drawing must be read with the relevant
specification clauses and detal drawings.

7. Order of construction and setting out to be
agreed on site.

bt o s s

HEWYORKSTONE ruAGs MARKET sqUARE

Cornmone e s

R Pty

NEW SQUARE MARKET SQUARE

|

T g o ot

R

T w8
s T e

o

[

o —
Ho et o oot

[
- newconaies.
[a o

D
@

o g5

&
e
O

82T obed

= SPOKE PUATRUL SEATING
biect tofurther design detal

TIMBER SLATTED SEATING
IR e oot e et
Featuring am and back ests depending o locatlon

r—
B er desen e

'ACCESS CONTROL BOLLARD.
Subject tofurther design cetai
Staticor drap bollrd depending on focation

‘CORPORATION STREET FEATURE LIGHTING

coLup
Relocated and made good

CHURCH ENTRANCE GATE POST TOTEM
Subject o uther design detail
]

L o amy  toomsm o e
e rowlrorns

Entoapintiecon  Wltiecom

2Back ratons, Aicham, WAL 10%
Lonpon
Uk B Witeside, 448 Wha asd,London, N TUX
o7 zs35478

Terpes 5,2 St it 2207
~ o3 730

ciom Chesterfield Council

Coedon  Crstedby  Approvedny
140122 JTO 8

Saate sae Workstage
Various A2 Information

a sutabitty Rovion
2766-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-0002 st po1

PAGE 118



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

11.3 Burlington Street

62T abed

)\ feas
—

s
R %")"A"x,““a"\‘v‘j&
%’.‘ W ‘s{%‘m&‘ i

-

\
\
\
\

NOTES:

1.Donot scale from this drawing.

2. Always work to noted dimensions,

3.All dimensions are in millimetres unless
othenwise stated.

4. Allsettingout,levels and dimensions to be
agreed on site

5. The dimensions of all materials must be
checked on site before being laid out.

6. This drawing must be read with the relevant
specification clauses and detal drawings.
7. 0rder of construction and setting out to be.
agreed on site

KeY

agowoRKs
i Sl A
oot S
T sscabing
o ety s s s

Cornmone et

Btrdors L 00 oy

ooy oo eyl ot

[ A R—
Pty

T gt
He

= wesomsmee o
Ho

i
- wewcossues.
[La e

D

@
&

[ ]

O

ot gounssm igh

oarcare
s -

FurwuRe.
= SPOKE PUATRUL SEATING
“Subject tofrther cesign detal

[ e ST seav

Subject o uther design deail
Featuring amm and back ests depending n locatkon

r—
B erdesende

'ACCESS CONTROL BOLLARD.
Subject tofurther design detail
Stticor drop ballard depending o location
‘CORPORATION STREET FEATURE LIGHTING

coLumm
Relocated and made good

CHURCH ENTRANCE GATE POST TOTEM,
W Subjecttofurthercesign detal

Planit L. Limited

fogplntiecom  Weplnitiecom
et ——

Lompon
U8 Watarside, 445 har oad,London, N1 TUX
s

[ —

ciom Chesterfield Count

Chesterfield LUF

Saate sae Worktage

sutabitty Roviion
1

orgre.
2766-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-5002

PAGE 119



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

11.4 Rykneld Square and the Church interface

REFRODUCED N WHOLE ORPART WITHOUT WAITEN

NOTES:
1. Do ot scale from this drawing.

2. Always work to noted dimensions

3. Alldimensions are in millimetres unless
othenise stated.

4. Allsetting out,levels and dimensions to be

AN agreed onsite.
5. The dimensions of all materials must be
/ checked on site before being laid out.
6. This drawing must be read with the relevant
specification clauses and detal drawings.
7. 0rder of construction and setting out to be
agreed onsite.

KeY
asowoRks

it Sl A
oo an S
T sscabing

oo —————
R ———

Beeritns LT <550 O ot

- ERSTING CBLES SAWN, TUMBLED AUD RELAD.
b e e e s
[ gt estend
S ptntly o i
[ A R—
Pty

g [
RN [
H et sion!

= ,‘?ﬂﬂ?
s B B o,
. e goun s
M W
.

-

s -

FurmuRe

Il BESPOKE PLAYFUL SEATING.
“Subject tofrther cesign detal

0ST abed

TIMBER SLATTED SEATING
MO e o e e e
Fesuingamand bac st cependingonocafon

WAYFINDING TOTEM
B obiect tofurther esign detal
i o

'ACCESS CONTROL BOLLARD.
© Subjec tofurtherdesign detal
~Staticor rop bollard depending o lcation

‘CORPORATION STREET FEATURE LIGHTING

® cown
“Relocated andmade good
CHURCH ENTRANCE GATE POST TOTEM
W Subjecttofurthercesign detail

Ekgpanieon  Wipnitiecon
2Bk ratons, Avincham, WA 101

Lowoon
B Waterside, 445 Whar oadLondon, N TUX
s

evpooL.
Tompest 53,12 Titebar e, Uerpoot 2207

ciom Chesterfield Council

Chesterfield LUF

orgmue Rykneld Square - GA

EEVTE——

/ 10122 10

sutabiity Roviion

orgre.
2766-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-1002 s1 po1

PAGE 120



RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT PLANIT-IE

11.5 Corporation Street - One way scheme

—/Wayfinding totem

TET obed

— One way street

Feature paving

—— Accessible bays

— Lighting column

Courtesy crossing

— Loading & taxi drop-off

— Existing
trees

— Feature paving

— Drop-off &
taxi

Wayfinding totem

Seating

Proposed
trees

— Planting
bed

(©) Eshwcmwo oo

NOTES:
1.Donot scale from this drawing.

2. Always work to noted dimensions,
3.Alldimensions are i millimetres unless
Otherwise stated.

4. Allsettingout,levels and dimensions to be
agreed on site

5. The dimensions of all materials must be
checked on site before being laid out.

6. This drawing must be read with the relevant
specification clauses and detal drawings.

7. 0rder of construction and setting out to be.
agreed on site

% e T
@ =T

= SPOKE PUATRUL SEATING

Subject o urther design deta
[ e ST seav

Subject o uther design deail

Featuring anm and back et dependingon ocatlon

WAYFINDING TOTEM

B erdesende
Access conTRoL BoLLARD
o i eberdedgndes

Saticorchop bolad cepending on ocaton

‘CORPORATION STREET FEATURE LIGHTING

. n
Relocted andmade ood
CHURCH ENTRANCE GATE POST TOTEM
B ubjecttofurtherdesign detal
s omn roremaon o
S tois  roniom o
Rewsion ] owe | orscron ]

Fon Ao, WL 101

A8 R, London. A X

St Lok 2207

ciom Chesterfeld Council

Coedon  Crsteaby  Approvedny
140122 JTO 8

scle see Workstage
1250 A2 Information

orgre sutabitey Rovion
2766-PLA-XX-XX-DR-L-4002 s1 P02

PAGE 121



PLANIT-IE RIBA STAGE 02 REPORT

s
o be
e

levant

materials must
eing laid out.

be read with the rel

of all
fore

s are in millimetres unle:
, levels and dimensions

rom this drawing.
to noted dimensions

ions

3

o
1

‘CORPORATION STREET FEATURE LIGHTING

coLumn

NOTES:
1. Donotscal
2. Always work
3. Alldimens|

Relocated and made good

L tourther desin detal

CHURCH ENTRANCE GATE POST TOTEM
Subject esig deta

Chesterfield Council

5
5

oeTe Corporation Street - GA Option 2

Crenadon

Workstage

orgre

Wayfinding

totem
Seating

Planting
bed

\ T
- P4
|

\\VAV N\\;ﬂ

w
~2 % Sy ./&:
& e S5SNIV
P m ;“““W‘“‘“‘“‘“‘W'”ﬁ“ﬁ’v’l\,
~ 8 3o n e eesas st ooe
Q IS ““““ T
— o ST IRTITITID
- : SSSesei it
SSe38000e000a%ss
s
Eraias
-
»n““““u““ SRS
-
BRI et
9009, S efangiciccise?
S IIAITSSETER RN
. o ae
oSetetyey / Neses2ssseses,
~ ~ i A““‘“““\ / m«»‘“‘u\
~ 5
~ ~ 3
~ / (o))
~ h £
) 2
SN 3
~ NN
~ NN
o > \ .%
(9]
~ N g
< N\ 5
AN / N &
DAY
/)
’
/ —
3
@
A N %
°
/ | F
| c
/ | | 2
4 / $
/oS \ / &
\A ) / \ /o /
/ /
_ 7
I ~ /

Feature paving

— Wayfinding totem

Existing
trees

Delivery &
drop-off

Fire route

Drop bollards

/Y

//

/

/

/

11.6 Corporation Street - Partial road closure

Page 132

PAGE 122



¢¢T abed

MANCHESTER

LONDON

LIVERPOOL

STANDISH

LEEDS

2 Back Grafton Street
Altrincham,
WA14 1DY

+44 (0)161 928 9281

Waterside, 44-48 Wharf Road
London,
N1 7UX

+44 (0)207 253 5678

Tempest 5.3, 12 Tithebarn Street,
Liverpool,
L2 2DT

+44 (0)151 363 1230

Standish Gatehouse, Stonehouse,
Gloucestershire,
GL103BZ

+44 (0)145 360 7080

No.1 Aire Street, Leeds Station
Leeds,
LS14PR

+44 (0)113 824 6413



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS - IMPLEMENTATION MONITORING SCHEDULE

Ref ltem Decision Scrutiny Committee Completion Action / Further Action
No (Scrutiny Issue Dates Recommendations and/or Date for Response Required by
or Topic. SPG (Scrutiny Decision making body resolution Actions Completed Scrutiny
= Scrutiny Committee, (italics = Agreed by Scrutiny (6 monthly
Project Group Cabinet, Committee but not yet considered by progress reports)
work) Council & its decision making body) *
Committees)
CCO1 | Statutory CCO 29.09.11 | Progress report on sharing information 6 monthly Statistics Agreed on
- Crime & (Min. No. 44) re alcohol related health problems and wef requested for each | 08.01.15 that
S Disorder hospital admissions. 29/09/11. 6 monthly meeting | statistics on
< Scrutiny Ctte alcohol related
N health problems /
@\ hospital
admissions be
reported to each
6 monthly
meeting.
CCO2 | Visitor CCO0 03.02.22 | Visitor Economy SPG report approved 12 months Update requested
Economy (Min. No. by CCO 03.02.22, recommending: wef. in line with
03.02.22 recommendations

1. That the findings of the scrutiny
project group be considered by
Cabinet alongside consideration of
the visitor economy strategy and
action plan.

2. That subject to the approval of the
strategy and action plan by full
council on 23 February, 2022, an
update on the delivery of the action
plan be reported to the CC&O

in February 2023

Page 1

Last Updated 04/07/22

G wa)| epuaby



Ref ltem Decision Scrutiny Committee Completion Action / Further Action
No (Scrutiny Issue Dates Recommendations and/or Date for Response Required by
or Topic. SPG (Scrutiny Decision making body resolution Actions Completed Scrutiny
= Scrutiny Committee, (italics = Agreed by Scrutiny (6 monthly
Project Group Cabinet, Committee but not yet considered by progress reports)
work) Council & its decision making body) *
Committees)
Scrutiny Committee after the
strategy has been in place for 12
months to allow scrutiny to review
the progress made.
EW6 Skills EW 05.02.19 Skills SPG report approved by Monitoring Progress reported | Monitoring Action
(Min. No 48) Enterprise and Wellbeing 05.02.19 Action is to E&W —4.02.21. | is being
being developed in
Cabinet Response: developed in consultation with
1. That the Cabinet thanks the consultation senior officers to
Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny with senior identify target
o Committee for the report which officers to dates for
& highlights an important area of work for | identify completion.
@ the Council and reflects our target dates Update due Sept
o commitment to driving skills for 2022
o

development in the Borough through
our support of the Skills Action Plan

and continued engagement with key
partners and stakeholders.

2. That the Cabinet notes and
endorses the recommendations, and
acknowledges that the
recommendations can be
accommodated within the normal work
programme and through partners.

completion.

Page 2

Last Updated 04/07/22




Ref
No

ltem
(Scrutiny Issue
or Topic. SPG
= Scrutiny
Project Group
work)

Decision
Dates
(Scrutiny
Committee,
Cabinet,
Council & its
Committees)

Scrutiny Committee
Recommendations and/or
Decision making body resolution
(italics = Agreed by Scrutiny
Committee but not yet considered by
decision making body) *

Completion
Date for
Actions

Action /
Response
Completed

Further Action
Required by
Scrutiny

(6 monthly progress

reports)

/€T abed

3. That the decision to co-fund the
Enterprise Co-ordinator post be
deferred for consideration as a
growth request as part of the
budget setting process for
2020/21. The Cabinet recognises
the positive impact of the
Enterprise Co-ordinator for
Chesterfield and that this is
currently co-funded for 2 years
until 2019/20.

See SPG Report for recommendations.

EWS8

Parks and
Open Spaces
and Play
Strategies

EW 14.10.21
(Min. No. 16)

Committee Resolutions:

1.That the feedback provided by the
committee be submitted as part of the
public consultation process

2.That a further update be brought to
the committee to demonstrate how the
consultation feedback has influenced
the final versions of the strategies.

3.That the committee undertake a
monitoring role, particularly at the
implementation stage of the process.

Ongoing

The final
strategies were
presented to
Cabinet
22.02.22 and
then to council
23.04.22

Update report on
implementation due
February 2023

Page 3

Last Updated 04/07/22




Ref ltem Decision Scrutiny Committee Completion Action / Further Action

No (Scrutiny Issue Dates Recommendations and/or Date for Response Required by
or Topic. SPG (Scrutiny Decision making body resolution Actions Completed Scrutiny
= Scrutiny Committee, (italics = Agreed by Scrutiny (6 monthly progress
Project Group Cabinet, Committee but not yet considered by reports)
work) Council & its decision making body) *

Committees)

OPS8 HS2 OPSF Cabinet Response: Following Recommendati | Monitor after Hybrid
11.09.18 1. That the Cabinet thanks the Parliament’s ons approved Bill has been taken
Overview and Performance Scrutiny | consideration | by Cabinet to Parliament.
Cabinet Forum for the first class work that of the Hybrid | 23.10.18
23.10.18 has been taken forward in looking at | Bill Update from the
(Min. No. 48) how the Council is preparing for Monitoring Leader requested
HS2 and, in particular, for the update for second half of
Forum'’s efforts in broadening and considered by | 2022/23 OSC work
;,U deepening the understanding of OPSF - programme.
S Council Members of the subject 19.03.19 and
= matter. 27.02.22.
w
0o

2. That Cabinet notes and endorses
the recommendations of the
Overview and Performance Scrutiny
Forum.

3. That Cabinet endorses, in
particular, the Forum’s
recommendation to establish a new
Skills Scrutiny Project group and
resolves to defer to the Overview
and Performance Scrutiny Forum

Page 4 Last Updated 04/07/22



Ref ltem Decision Scrutiny Committee Completion Action / Further Action
No (Scrutiny Issue Dates Recommendations and/or Date for Response Required by
or Topic. SPG (Scrutiny Decision making body resolution Actions Completed Scrutiny
= Scrutiny Committee, (italics = Agreed by Scrutiny (6 monthly progress
Project Group Cabinet, Committee but not yet considered by reports)
work) Council & its decision making body) *
Committees)
further consideration of the merit of
establishing new Scrutiny Project
Groups to look at particular aspects
- of HS2 as part of the future work
2 programming discussions.
g See SPG Report for recommendations.

©

Abbreviations Key : OP = Overview and Performance Scrutiny Forum. CCO = Community, Customer and Organisational Development Scrutiny
Committee. EW = Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee). TBA (to be agreed).
* Note recommendation wording may be abridged.

Page 5

Last Updated 04/07/22



This page is intentionally left blank



T1T obed

WORK PROGRAMME: ENTERPRISE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ON 14 JULY 2022

Scrutiny Cabinet
Committee Business Item : Status : Raised by : Member
Date: Responsibility
1 |24.05.22 Private Sector Policies were presented for review and Annual Housing
Housing — to review | feedback provided. Scrutiny Work
a number of policies Programme
in development 2022
2 |14.07.22 Consultation Annual Health &
Exercise on Scrutiny Work | Wellbeing
Revitalising the Heart Programme
of Chesterfield and 2022
Recycling
Communications
Plan
3 [22.09.22 Skills Action Plan Annual Economic
Update & Scrutiny Work | Growth
Measuring success Programme
of the town centre — 2022
scrutiny focus group
on developing a set
of measures by
which to measure the
success of the town
centre.

) W) epuaby



ZyT abed

Scrutiny
Committee
Date:

Business ltem :

Status :

Raised by :

Cabinet
Member
Responsibility

01.12.22

CBC Housing —
decent homes
standard
(Government
consultation —
awaiting further
announcement),
turning round a
vacant property and
the impact of Covid
on the backlog of
repairs.

Annual
Scrutiny Work
Programme
2022

Housing

09.02.23

Communications
plan for town centre
developments — how
are the public being
kept informed of
progress/disruption,
how can members
be kept informed to
respond effectively to
resident’s queries.

Annual
Scrutiny Work
Programme
2022

Economic
Growth

30.03.23

TBC

Annual
Scrutiny Work




et T obed

Scrutiny Cabinet

Committee Business Item : Status : Raised by : Member
Date: Responsibility
Programme
2022

Scrutiny Project Groups (SPG) :

ltems Pending Reschedule or Removal:

| | | | |

New Business Iltems Proposed:

Note: Items for monitoring (from scrutiny reviews and/or recommendations) are not included above but are listed in the
Scrutiny Monitoring Form a separate item on the agenda. Items from the Forward Plan and Scrutiny Monitoring Form can be
included in the work programme. [KEY to abbreviations : O&P = Overview and Performance Scrutiny Forum. CCO =
Community, Customer and Organisational Development Scrutiny Committee. E&W = Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny
Committee. TBC = to be confirmed. KD = Forward Plan Key Decision].



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

EWSC 24.05.22

ENTERPRISE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 24th May, 2022

Present:-
Councillor Flood (Chair)
Councillors Caulfield Councillors Brittain
Dyke
Sarah Watts, Private Sector Housing Manager +
+ Attended for Minute No. 4

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

No declarations of interest were received.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Coy, Hollingworth
and Snowdon.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC

RESOLVED -

That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING - PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING
POLICY CONSULTATION

The Private Sector Housing Manager presented an overview to the
committee of three new policies related to Private Sector Housing. In
2021 Cabinet approved the Private Sector Housing Project Plan and the

Page 145



EWSC 24.05.22

policies would form part of that plan. Additional policies were expected to
follow, to improve the Council’s enforcement toolbox.

The first policy related to the energy performance of buildings; specifically
privately rented properties and was born from two pieces of legislation.
These laws ensure that landlords have a valid Energy Performance
Certificate (EPC) and that they are rated at a minimum band E level. The
legislation gave the Council authority to ask landlords to meet the
minimum E requirement or face financial penalties.

Both Chesterfield Borough Council and the government have a shared
desire to improve the thermal efficiency of properties, which in turn
improves health and wellbeing, financially helps fuel poor residents and
reduces the effects of global warming. It was confirmed that the EPC
register is publicly available online, so tenants are able to look at the
rating of properties and the team is able to check which properties do not
have a certificate in place.

The second policy is specific to Chesterfield Borough Council and relates
to amenities and space standards in Houses of Multiple Occupation
(HMO). In 2018 the government changed mandatory licensing
requirements for HMOs and introduced national minimum room size
standards for sleeping accommodation. The government also allowed
local authorities to set their own local standards and the team viewed this
as an opportunity to help safeguard some of the most vulnerable
residents of the borough that live in HMOs.

The new standards set a suitable benchmark that provided consistency
amongst landlords and also with neighbouring authorities. The standards
would help to ensure that tenants had a safe amount of space to live
healthily in. Discussions took place around the minimum requirements for
kitchen and bathroom facilities within HMOs and the officer confirmed that
those were detailed in the policy, in order to achieve the best standards
for tenants.

The third policy related to Park Homes. The legislation had changed to
introduce a requirement for councils to carry out a fit and proper persons
assessment for all park home site owners. It was acknowledged that park
home tenants were also a vulnerable section of society and the existing
policy needed to be refreshed in order to protect those tenants.

RESOLVED -

Page 146



EWSC 24.05.22

1. That the committee note the new policies.
2. That a further update be provided to the committee on the
effectiveness of the policies following implementation.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - RE-ADMISSION OF THE PUBLIC

*RESOLVED -

That after consideration of items containing exempt information, the public
be re-admitted to the meeting.

SCRUTINY MONITORING

The Committee considered the Scrutiny recommendations monitoring
schedule.

RESOLVED -
1.  That the Scrutiny monitoring schedule be noted.

FORWARD PLAN

The Forward Plan for the four month period 1 June, 2022 to 30
September, 2022 was presented for information.

RESOLVED -
That the Forward Plan be noted.

WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE ENTERPRISE AND WELLBEING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The 2022/23 Work Programme for the Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny
Committee was reported for information. The committee were advised
that due to workload pressures, the Economic Growth item scheduled for
the July meeting will now be postponed.

RESOLVED -

Page 147



EWSC 24.05.22

1. That the work programme be noted and updated to include the
decisions of the current meeting.

2. That the Economic Growth item scheduled for July be moved to the
September meeting.

3. Arecycling education topic be brought to the next meeting
alongside a consultation exercise on the Revitalising the Heart of
Chesterfield Plans.

MINUTES
RESOLVED -
The Minutes of the meeting of the Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny

Committee held on 7 April, 2022 were approved as a correct record and
signed by the Chair.

Page 148



	Agenda
	4 Cabinet Member for Town Centres and Visitor Economy - Revitalising the Heart of Chesterfield - Consultation
	revitalising-the-heart-of-chesterfield-report

	5 Scrutiny Monitoring
	7 Work Programme for the Enterprise and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee
	8 Minutes

